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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Education
Topeka Public Schools
Unified School District No. 501:

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Topeka Public
Schools, Unified School District No. 501 (the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, which
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These
financial statements are the responsibility of the District’s management, Our responsibility is to express
opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America, the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States and the applicable provisions of the Kansas
Municipal Audit Guide. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the District as of June 30, 2012 and the respective
changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year then ended in
conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued a report dated December 21,
2012, on our consideration of the District’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing
the results of our audit.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the Management’s
Discussion and Analysis, budgetary comparison information and schedule of funding progress on pages
3 through 12 and 54 through 61 be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing
the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have
applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of
management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other
knowledge we obtained during the audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with
sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the District’s basic financial statements, The accompanying supplementary
information including combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-profit Organizations is presented for purposes of
additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the undertying accounting
and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected to the
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain other procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
financial statements as a whole.

Diberie b paban gla, P A.

December 21, 2012



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section of the Topeka Public Schools, Unified
Schoo! District No. 501 (the District) financial report presents our discussion and analysis of the
District’s financial performance during the year. The MD&A is intended to assist the reader in gaining a
better understanding of how the various statements relate to each other and provide an objective and
easily readable analysis of the District’s financial activities, based on currently known facts, decisions
and conditions.

USING THIS GASB 34 BASED REPORT

The District’s financial statement package for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 is made up of the
Independent Auditor's Report, this Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) (Unaudited), the
Basic Financial Statements (Audited), and required supplementary information. These financial
statements include all the accounts for which the District is considered to be financially responsible.
The MD&A is intended to serve as an introduction to the District’s basic financial statements.

THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONSIST OF THE FOLLOWING:

District Wide Financial Statements
Fund Financial Statements
Agency Financial Statements

DISTRICT WIDE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:

The District-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the
District’s finances in a manner similar to a private-sector business. These statcments take a much larger
view of the District’s finances than do the fund-level statements.

The Statement of Net Assets presents information on all of the District’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net assets. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets may
serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the District is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the District’s net assets changed during
the last fiscal year.

The District-wide financial statements are presented using the economic resources measurement focus,
which emphasizes the determination of net income and expense on the accrual basis of accounting, as
are the accompanying proprietary fund statements. Revenues are recognized when earned and expenses
are recorded when the liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes
are recognized as revenue in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized
as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.



Proprietary funds, or business-type activities, distingnish operating revenues and expenses from non-
operating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in
connection with a proprietary fund’s ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the
District’s proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the
enterprise funds and internal service funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this definition are
repotted as non-operating revenues and expenses.

As a general rule, the effect of inter-fund activity has been eliminated from the District-wide financial
statements. Exceptions to this rule are charges between the District’s governmental and business-type
activities. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for
the various functions concerned.

Below is a summarized comparison of the District’s Statement of Net Assets and Statement of
Activities:



TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS, UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501 NET ASSETS

Govemnmental Business-Typa
Activities Actlivities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Assels
Current assels
Cash and investments s 43,911,056 3 50,906,986 $ 4,980,510 $ 5,293,403 $ 48,891,566 $ 56,200,389
Other 7,332,132 10,053,643 751,283 609,386 3,038,415 10,663,029
Total cument assets 51,248,188 60,960,629 5,731,793 5,902,789 56,979,981 66,863,418
Noncurrent assets
Capital assets, net 98,117,051 88,216,785 1,231,722 1,250,198 99,348,773 89,466,083
Cther noncurrent assels 134,178 190,350 - - 134,178 194,350
Tola) nongumrent assels 08,251,229 88,407,135 1,231,722 1,250,198 99,482,951 89,657,333
Tolal assets 149,499,417 149,367,764 6,963,515 7,152,987 156,462,932 156,520,751
Liabilities
Current lizbilities
Accounts payzble and accrued liabilities 8,949,928 10,485,904 986,607 1,733,650 9,946,535 12,219,554
Accried interest payable 570,230 631,395 - - 570,230 681,395
General obligation bonds payable, current
portion 5,605,000 5,085,000 - - 5,603,000 5,085,500
Other current liabitities 6,806,452 6,859,523 $9,900 - 6,896,352 6,859,523
Total curcent liabilities 21,931,610 23,111,822 1,086,507 1,733,650 23,018,117 24,845,472
Noncureent liabilities
General obligation bonds payable, net 22,639,181 28,385,989 - - 22,639,181 28,385,989
Accrved compensated absences 1,846,481 1,562,764 - - 1,846,481 1,562,764
Land note payable - 998,044 - - - 998,944
Post employmeat benefils payable 12,526,045 11,217,181 - - 12,526,049 11,217,181
Total noncurrent liabifities 37,011,711 42,164,878 - B 37,011,711 42,164,878
Total Habitities 58,943,321 63,276,700 1,086,507 733,630 60,029,828 67,010,350
Net assets
Invested in capital assets, net of 69,872,870 53,533,907 1,231,922 1,250,195 71,104,592 54,786,105
related debt
Restricted 6,563,639 5,956,126 - - 6,563,039 5,956,126
Usnrestricted 14,119,587 24,599,031 4,645,286 4,169,139 18,764,873 28,768,170
Total net assets $ $0,556,096 $ 84,001,064 $ 5,877,008 S 5419337 S 96,433,104 $ 89,510,401




TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS, UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501 CHANGES IN NET ASSETS

Governrental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
2012 2011 2012 2011 2012 2011
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services $§  1,555436 5 1,518813 S 2424808 $ 2,042,319 3 3,980,244 5 3,561,132
Federal prants 22,267,102 25,189,227 6,121,144 5,784,432 28,388,246 30,973,659
Other grants and contributions 9,896,297 9,936,478 250 553,000 9,896,547 10,489,563
Gereral revenues:
Property laxes 35,031,648 33,255,112 - - 35,031,648 33,255,112
State aid 95,166,712 92,807,938 74,915 73,199 95,241,627 92,881,137
Other revenue from local sources 862,395 1,045,897 50 182 862,445 1,047,079
Intecest and investment eamnings 31,093 71604 1,392 5,331 32,485 76,935
Miscellaneous 018,495 51404 - - 918,495 51,404
Total revenues 165,729,178 163,877,473 8,622,559 8,458,553 174,351,737 172,336,026
Expenses:
Instruction 100,271,261 98,627,251 - - 100,271,261 98,627,251
Instructional suppoert 3,606,203 3,137,353 - - 3,606,203 3,137,353
Student support 15,811,285 13,127,814 - - 15,811,285 13,127,314
General administration 2,097,036 2,176,986 - - 2,097,036 2,176,986
School administration 7,657,041 8,562,664 - - 1,657,041 8,562,664
Business support 2,179,087 1,771,383 - - 2,179,087 1,771,383
Plant and maintenance 14,564,112 15,195,755 - - 14,564,112 15,195,755
Transportation 3,900,737 3,493,506 - - 3,900,737 3,493,505
Ceniral support seryices 4,609,356 5,214,403 - - 4,609,356 5,214,403
Giber support 148,319 164,392 - - 148,319 164,392
Student activities E057,041 986,470 - - 1,057,041 986,770
Risk management - - - - - -
Interest on long-term debt 1,385,069 1,603,224 - - 1,385,069 1,603,224
Vocational School - - 2,017,639 2,566,050 2,017,639 2,566,050
Food Service - - 7,381,205 6,950,288 7,381,205 6,950,288
Other business-{ype activities - - 743,643 379,088 743,643 379,088
Total expenses 157,286,547 154,061,501 10,142,487 9,895,420 167,420,034 163,956,927
Increase (decrease) in net assets 8,442,631 0,815,972 (1,519,928) (436,813 6,922,703 8,379,099
before transfers
Transfers (1,977,599 {65,008) 1,977,599 65,008 - -
Change in net assets 6,465,032 9,750,964 457,671 (1,371,865) 6,922,703 8,379,099
Net assets, beginning as previously stated 84,091,064 72,568,458 5,419,337 6,791,202 §9,510401 79,359,660
Prior period adjustment - 1,771,642 - - - 1,771,642
Net assels, beginning as restated 34,001,064 74,340,100 5419,337 6,791,202 89,510,401 81,131,302
Net assets, ending $ 90,556,096 $ 84,091,064 $ 5,877,008 S 5,419,337 $ 96,433,104 S 89,510,401

FUND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Governmental fund financial statements provide more detailed information about the District’s most
significant funds—not the District as a whole. A fund is an accounting device and considered to be a
separate accounting entity, and is used to keep track of specific sources of funding and spending for a
particular purpose. The operations of each fund are accounted for with a separate set of selt-balancing
accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures. Funds are used to
ensure and demonstrate compliance with financial related legal requirements.



Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement
focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, operating statements
present increases and decreases in net cuirent assets and fund balance as a measure of available
spendable resources. This means only current liabilities are generally included on their balance sheets.
Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and
available, “Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter, to pay liabilities of the current period.
Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incwrred as under accrual accounting;
however, debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated absences are
recorded only when payment is due.

District’s Major Governmental Funds:

1. General Fund — Used to account for the general operations of the District and all unrestricted
revenues and expenditures not required to be accounted for in other funds.

2. K-12 At-Risk Fund - Used to account for revenues and expenditures related to the education and
services for at-risk children within the District.

3, Special Education Fund — Used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to the
education and services for District’s special needs programs.

4, Capital Outlay — Used to account for revenues that are primarily utilized for the acquisition,
construction, repair, and remodeling of the District’s buildings and facilities.

5. USDE Pass Through Fund — Used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to federal
grant programs funded by the United States Department of Education,

District’s Major Proprietary Funds—Business Type Activities:

. Textbook/Study Material Revolving—Receives money collected from the District’s students for
the rental of class textbooks. This rental income is used to purchase replacement textbooks and
new textbooks whenever new textbook adoptions are implemented. Some textbook rental fees
are waived based on the student’s financial status. When this occurs the Board of Education
transfers funds from its General Fund to cover the cost of the waivered fee, so that the integrity
of the rental program is not affected.

2. Food Service — Established pursuant to state law to account for all monies received and expenses
attributable to the District’s breakfast and lunch programs.

SUPPLEMENTAL FINANCIAL SCHEDULES:
Kansas’s statutes require that each year the District must provide overseeing state agencies with an

audited set of financial statements, Thus, the data presented in the District-wide and Fund financial
statements is converted to the budget basis of accounting and provided as supplemental schedules.



Each individual school maintains its activity funds to handle funds raised and expended by its various
student groups. These funds are held and controlled by the District for the purpose for which they were
raised. Separate supplemental financial statements covering these funds are included in the packet of
financial statements.

A separate schedule on federal grants received by the District is also included to assist those outside the
District in monitoring the proper handling of grants awarded to the District.

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS ANALYSIS:

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a governmental organization’s
financial position. In the case of the District, governmental activities’ assets exceeded liabilities by
$90,556,096 at the close of the most recent fiscal year; business type activities’ assets exceeded
liabilities by $5,877,008 at the close of the most recent fiscal year. For both types of activities
combined, the District’s net assets increased by $6,922,703.

The noncurrent portion of the District’s total assets, net of depreciation, (65.7%, up 6.5% from fiscal
year 2011) reflects its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings and equipment), minus any
~related debt used to acquire those assets that are still outstanding and accumulated depreciation, The
change reflects the continued retiring of bonded debt while normal depreciation reduced the District’s
net value of its depreciable assets and the large investment in long-term assets. The most notable
investment was the enlarging of two elementary schools during the year. The District uses these capital
assets to provide services to its students; consequently, these assets are not available for future spending.
Although the District’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted
that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate liabilities.

1. The District’s total assets (net of depreciation) decreased very slightly by $57,819 (0.04%)
during 2012. This decrease in assets comes on the heels of a $7,232,586 increase last year,
Current assets decreased by $9,883,437 as current assets on hand were used to cover the costs
associated with expanding and equipping the two schools. This year's change reflects the actions
taken by the District in dealing with and preparing for reduced and unstable/reliable funding in
the future, The District’s cash and investments decreased $7,308,823 as a result of this year’s
activity. The large decrease in cash and investments reflects the District's efforts to provide
funding for construction projects without increasing the load on taxpayers through a mill levy
increase. The two projects costing in the neighborhood of $16,000,000 were completed and
paid out of the District's reserves were completed shortly after the close of the fiscal year.

2. The District’s non-current liabilities decreased $5,153,167 during the year ended June 30, 2012,
This reflects the maturing of some outstanding bonded debt. The year-end balance of
$28,015,000 in long-term bonded debt was 4.6% of the District’s assessed valuation. Kansas
Statutes set a debt limit for school districts at 14% of the district’s assessed valuation. To issue
bonds for more than the 4% limit requires approval from the State Board of Education. Thus,
USD 501 had over $59,520,000 of long-term debt authority available and unused as of year-end
Tune 30, 2012, Please refer to the notes to financial statements for additional information on
long-term debt.
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Total liabilities decreased by $7,070,422 (10.6%). This reflects the aggressive scheduled
retirement of general obligation bonds. However, the District’s Post Retirement Benefits
Liability increased $1,308,868. That increase partially mitigated the effect of the bonded debt
reduction, The increase in the Post Retirement Benefits Liability reftects the District’s continued
early retirement program design to address on-going budget cuts.

Combined current and non-current accrued compensated absences increased from $2,532,071 in
2011 to $2,845,095 at year ended June 30, 2012, This reflects the continued downsizing/early
retirement initiatives undertaken in FY-2010.

The District’s Total-Debt-to-Total-Assets ratio for 2012 is 38.3% (down 4.5%), which means the
District’s debt represents about 38% of its total assets. This would indicate that the District has
financed a large portion of their asset acquisitions from current operations rather than via debt.

The District’s Bonded-Debt-To-Capital Assets ratio on June 30, 2012 was 28.4%. Thus, the
District’s Capital assets-net of depreciation was 3.5 times the bonded debt of the District. The
District’s adopted aggressive bond/long-term debt repayment scheme continues to reduce the
outstanding debt at a rate well in excess of the rate of depreciation applied to the District’s
capital assets. The retirement of $5,085,000 in bonded debt during the year resulted in the
Bonded-Debt-To-Capital Assets Ratio dropping 8.5%., from 36.9% on June 30, 2011.

The Statement of Activities provides some detail into the $6,922,703 increase in net assets the
District saw in 2012, The District saw its revenues increase $2,015,711. This increase was due
to increased funding in the form of State aid of $2,360,490, an increase in property tax
collections of $1,776,536, and a $867,091 increase in revenue from the sale of capital assets.
These increases were partially offset by a decrease in federal grants of $2,585,413. As the
nation’s interest rates and other returns on investments continued to fall Iast year, so did the
District’s revenue from interest on investments, it decreased by $44,450 or 57.7% to $32,485.
The District was able to sustain a positive increase in net assets by holding the increase in its
expenses to 2.1% from $163,956,927 in FY-2011 to 167,429,034 in FY-2012.

Revenue from property taxes increased 5.3% and yielded $1,776,536 more tax revenue than in
2011. The increase can be attributed to the District raising its mill levy by 2.006 mills, while
experiencing a slight increase in assessed valuation.

The District’s Current Ratio fell slightly from 2.69 in 2011 to 2.48 in 2012, Since the current
ratio is a measure of an entity’s ability to meet its current obligations on time and to have funds
readily available for current operations, the current ratio of 2,48 is very good.

Another ratio similar to the current ratio is the “quick ratio”. This ratio is similar to the current
ratio but focuses more on cash and cash equivalents for the satisfaction of maturing debt. The
District’s quick ratio decreased from 2.26 in 2011 to 2.13 in 2012. The ratio indicates the
District has cash or cash equivalents (not inventory) in excess of the amount needed to pay its
currently maturing liabilities (2.13 times the amount). The slight decrease reflects the District’s
decision use its short-term investments to fund this year’s capital improvements.



Fund Financial Statement Analysis

1. General: Budget Authority granted the General Fund is based only on a district’s “full time
equivalent” (F.T.E.) student count. For FY-2012 the District’s F.T.E. count was 24,012.2.
Initially Kansas school districts saw a 1.35% funding increase as the legislature increased the
Base State Aid Per Pupil (BSAPP) amount increasing from $4,374 per ET.E. to $4,433 per
F.T.E.--from FY-2008 to FY-2009. However, as the national financial crisis hit Kansas during
the 2009 legislative session the BSAPP amount was reduced to $4,400. This still resulted in an
increase in budget authority for the District of $565,029. For FY-2010 budgets were initially
prepared and the school year started with the Base State Aid Per Pupil set at $4,218. In
December the State’s economy forced the rate to fall $206 per F.T.E. to $4,012. The net result
was that the District had to conduct its operations with $206 less per F.T.E. than it planned and
started the year with, for a total General Fund budget authority reduction of $5,565,926. The
District based its FY-2011 budget on a base state aid per pupil of $4,012. In the middle of the
budget year, the Governor directed that school district budget authority be reduced by $75 to a
base state aid per pupil of $3,937. This resulted in a reduction in General Fund budget authority
of $1,704,143. In FY-2012, the Base State Aid Per Pupil was set at $3,880. This further drop was
offset in the District by an increase in At-Risk weighting.

The District adopted GASB Statement No. 54 Fund Balance Reporting and Governmental Fund
Type Definitions for FY-2011. This adoption resulted in the Supplemental General Fund,
Inservice Education Fund, Summer School Fund, Pepsi Exclusivity Fund, Internal Service
Reserve Fund, Sports Park, Operations Fund, Payroll Liability Clearing Fund, Self-Insurance
Reserve Fund, Risk Management Fund, and the Contingency Reserve Fund being combined with
the General Fund on the Governmental Funds Balance Sheet and Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances. General Fund combining schedules are provided at
the end of the financial statements,

Supplemental General Fund: The Kansas Legislature in 2006 increased the maximum level of
budget authority in school districts’ Supplemental General Funds from 27% of the General Fund
to 31% of the general Fund. This District’s Supplemental General Fund remained at the same
30% rate for FY-2012 that it utilized in FY-2008. Being 1% below the maximum allowed acts
as a resetve for the District and would enable it to expand its budgets by over a total of $900,000
if the need would ever arise. With the reduction in the Base State Aid Per Pupil in the General
Fund, a flow through reduction to the Supplemental General Fund was avoided when the
legislature allowed districts to base their Supplemental General Fund budget authority on a
calculated General Fund amount calculated using the original $4,433 Base State Aid Per Pupil.

2. K-12 AT-RISK Fund: During Fiscal Year 2011 the interpretation of what the proper utilization
was for funds in the K-12 At-Risk fund were clarified in such a way that the District was
required to transfer employee compensation expenses for its counselor from the K-12 At-Risk
fund back to the General Fund. Since the K-12 At-Risk fund allows for the carrying over of
unused funds from one fiscal year to another, the unused budget authority was allowed to remain
in the fund for use in future years. This action is reflected in the $2,450,998 fund balance at
yeat’s end, an increase of nearly $600,000.
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USDE Pass Through Fund: This fund was created to account for federal grants from USDE.
This fund normally has a zero balance at the end of the fiscal year.

Special Education Fund: The State of Kansas increased funding for Special Education services
for Fiscal Year 2011, Even with the increase the District was still required to transfer an
additional $3,011,657 from its Supplemental General Fund to the Special Education Fund to
cover the costs associated with providing the required services. In late FY-2012, the District
transferred an additional $1,294,794 from the Supplemental General Fund to the Special
Education Fund in an effort to re-establish the needed carryover balance.

Capital Outlay Fund: The District’s mill levy to support the operations of the Capital Outlay
Fund was increased from 4.753 mills to 5.403 mills in Fiscal Year 2012. The fund’s revenue
stream was enhanced as a result of a legislature in 2008 creating a state aid program to assist
Kansas school districts in addressing their maintenance and repair needs. This District received
$1,243,197 in this type of assistance from the State, The Capital Improvement State Aid was
repealed in 2009 and was not be available for the FY-2012 budget year. Thus, the need for an
increase in the mill levy. Because of the severe economic conditions facing the District’s
taxpayers, the Board of Education decided to tighten its belt even more and voted to reduce the
capital outlay mill levy in FY-2011, In FY-2012, the Board of Education voted to restore part of
the capital outlay funding lost by the legislative action by increasing its capital outlay mill levy
by 0.65 mills, The 10 largest capital outlay projects during FY-2012 are as follows:

Ross Elementary room additions $7,352,037
State Street Elementary room additions $5,308,339
Southard Building remodel for meals on wheels $1,181,543
Former State Hospital land debt payoff $908,944
Kanza Wind Turbine $529,885
West Hall Building razed $161,005
Quinton Heights Building remodel $123,188
Topeka West High School intercom upgrade $61,557
Topeka High School asphalt overlay $56,925
Hope Street Academy boiler replacement $56,380

Textbook Revolving Fund: The year-end balance in the Textbook Rental/Study Material
Revolving Fund continued to fall. On June 30, 2010 the Fund’s balance reached $3,434,188. On
June 30, 2011, it dropped to $1,363,934. This large balance is a normal part of this fund’s
management. Textbooks are purchased on a 7 year adoption cycle. In some years the scheduled
adoption costs only a few hundred thousand dollars. However, the massive literature adoption
ran more than $3,000,000-six years ago. Thus, the need to accumulate at least that amount in
anticipation of that adoption’s return. Due to a large unexpected year-end transfer, the Fund’s
ending balance sat at $2,369,393 at the end of FY-2012.
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Food Service Fund: The District’s Food Service operation finished the year with net loss of
$37,629. Over 76% of the Fund’s student customers are eligible for free or reduced cost meals.
The United States Department of Agriculture reimbursed the District $2.9925 for every free meal
provided, The State of Kansas also reimburses the food service fund $.04 for all meals served.
As long as the District’s food service staff can keep the cost per meal below $3.0325 the District
should be able to show an annual gain from its food service operation.

Budgetary Highlights

I

The District in FY-2012 saw its total state budgeted amount for all funds increase from
$224,744,247 in FY-2011 to $251,574,257 in FY-2012 for a $26,829,960 increase. The
preponderance of that increase was in the District’s Capital Outlay Fund ($9,780,613). The
Federal School Improvement Grant at Highland Park High School was the main force behind
federal grants increasing by $2,537,326. The special assessment for the widening of MacVicar
street that runs along the east side of the District’s Sports Park drove the special assessment Fund
up $1,306,664. In June, the State of Kansas delayed the ltast scheduled FY-2011 KPERS transfer
until after year-end causing that fund to show a $4,033,580 increase. The District’s Special
Reserve Fund was hit with an increase of $1,839,850 as a result of repairing extensive roof
damage from the massive Aptil hail storm.

The Capital Outlay Fund’s $9,780,613 increase in expenditures reflects the construction of two
major elementary schools additions, and razing of the building at the Kanza Education and
Science Park plus the remodeling of the Southard Building for the Meals on Wheels program.
The nearly $10,000,000 increase in expenditures was financed by $3,032,807 that originated in
the Contingency Reserve fund, the sale of unneeded assets and an additional transfer of
$7,182,367 of unused funds from the General Fund.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

L.

The District decreased its long-term bonded debt load by $5,085,000 dwing FY-2012.
$28,015,000 of bonded debt remains.

During FY-2012 the District paid off its debt to the State of Kansas for the purchase of the State
Hospital Grounds. The $1,912,310 needed to extinguish the debt came out of the District’s
capital outlay fund.

As noted above, the District expended money on several capital projects during the year. Please refer to
the notes to the financial statements for information on capital assets,

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of U.S.D. 501’s finances for all those
with an interest in District finances. Questions concerning any of the information provided in this report
to requests for information should be addressed to the General Director of Fiscal Services, 624 SW 24™
Street, Topeka, Kansas 66611-1294.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501

TOPEKA, KANSAS
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2012
Governmental Business-Type
Activities Activities Total
Assets:
Current assels:
Cash and investments 3 43,911,056 S 4,980,510 48,891,566
Dae from other governniental units 752,859 - 752,859
Accrued interest receivable 566 - 366
State aid receivables 6,367,079 - 6,367,079
Advances due from other funds 89,900 - 89,900
Internal balances (15,635) 15,631 -
Inventory of materiats and supplies 142,359 735,652 878,011
Fotal current assets 51,248,188 5,731,793 56,979,981
Noncuirrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated 17,041,138 123,206 17,164,404
Capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation 81,075,913 1,108,456 22,184,369
Other noncurrent assets, net 134,178 - 134,178
Total noncurrent assels 98,251,229 1,231,722 99,482,951
Total asscis 149,499,417 6,963,515 156,462,932
Liabilities:
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities 8,949,928 996,607 9,946,535
Advances due to other funds - 89,900 89,900
Accrued interest payable 570,230 - 570,230
Estimated insurance clainis 624,953 - 624,953
Payroll liabilities 4,957,768 - 4,957,768
Unearned revenue 225,117 - 225,117
General obligation bonds payable, current portion 5,605,000 - 5,605,000
Accrued compensated absences 998,614 - 998,614
Total current liabilitics 21,931,010 1,086,507 23,018,117
Noncurrent liabilities:
General obligation bonds payable, net 22,639,181 - 22,639,181
Accrued compensated absences 1,846,481 - 1,846,481
Postemployment benefits payable 12,526,049 - 12,526,049
Total noncurrent liabilities 37,011,711 - 3,014,711
Total liabilities 58,943,321 1,086,507 60,029,528
Net assels:
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 69,872,870 1,231,722 71,104,592
Restricted for:
Debt service 2,572,043 - 2,572,043
Other 3,991,596 - 3,991,596
Unrestricted 14,119,587 4,645,280 18,764,873
Total net assets 3 90,556,096 $ 5,877.008 96,433,104

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

BALANCE SHEET
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

June 30, 2012

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Due from other governmental units
Accrued interest receivable

State aid receivables

Advances due from other funds
inventory of materials and supplies

Total assets
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES

Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Payroll liabilities
Deferred revenue

Total liabilities

Fund balances:
Nonspendable:
Inventories
Restricted
Assigned
Unassigned

Total fund balances
Total labilities and fund balances

* See the General Fund Combining Balance Sheet on pages 81-82,

See accompanying notes to financial statements,
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General*

$ 12,378,949

0,367,079
89,900
142,359

$ 18,978,287

$ 2,909,802
4,957,768

7,867,570

142,359

4,973,323
5,995,035

11,110,717

$ 18,978,287




Other Total
K-12 Special Capital USDE Governmental Governmental

At-Risk Education Outlay Pass Through Funds Funds
3,798,794 $ 6,094,281 $ 10,694,656 $ 1,032,338 § 7,059,066 $ 41,058,084
- - - 622,045 130,814 752,859
- - 566 - - 5006
- - - - - 6,367,079
- - - - - 89,900
- . - - - 142,359
3,708,794 $ 6,094,281 $ 10,695,222 $ 1,654,383 $ 7,189,880 $ 48,410,847
1,347,796 $ 1,230,934 5 1,538,489 $ 1,554,314 § 368,593 $ 8,949,928
- - - - - 4,957,768
- - - 100,069 125,048 225,117
1,347,796 1,230,934 1,538,489 1,654,383 493,641 14,132,813
- - - - - 142,359
1,516,704 - - - 5,617,165 7,133,869
934,294 4,863,347 9,156,733 - 1,079,074 21,006,771
- - - - - 5,995,035
2,450,998 4,863,347 0,156,733 - 6,696,239 34,278,034
3,798,794 $ 6,094,281 $ 10,695,222 $ 1,654,383 $ 7,189,880 $ 48,410,847
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET

TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
June 30, 2012

Total fund balances - governmental funds

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are
different because:

Capital asscts used in governmental activities are not financial resources and
therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds. The cost of the
assels is § 200,346,725 and the accumulated depreciation is $ (102,229,674).

Unamortized bond issue costs, net of accumulated amortization, are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported as assets in governmental funds,

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of dental insurance,
worker's compensation and prescription drugs to individual funds. The assets and
Habilities of the internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the
statement of net assets,

Long-term labilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable in the current
period and accordingly are not reported as fund liabilities. All liabilities - both
current and long-term - are reported in the statement of net assets. Balances at
June 30, 2012 are:

General obligation bonds payable 3
Deferred charge on refunding

Unamortized bond premium

Accrued interest payable

Accrued compensated absences {sick pay and vacation}
Post employment benefits

(28,015,000)
317,390
(546,571)
(570,230)
(2,845,095)
{12,526,049)

$ 34,278,034

98,117,051

134,178

2,212,388

(44,185,555)

‘Fotal net assets - governmental activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501

TOPEKA, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

Revenues;
Property taxes
Leocal sources
Charges for services
State aid
Federnl aid
Interest
On behalf payments:

KPERS

Miscellaneaus

Fotal revenues

Expenditures:
Instruction
Student support
Enstructional support
General administration
Schaol administration
Business support
Plant and maintenance
Transporiation

Central support services

Other support
Student activities

On behalf expendituzes:

KPERS
Debi service:

Principal

Interest

Facilities acquisition and consiruction

Total expenditures

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures

Other financing sources {uses):

Transfers in
Transfers out
Sale of capital assets

Insurance reimbursemants
Net change in fund balances

Fund balance, beginning of year

Fuond balance, end of year

* See the General Pund Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances on pages 83-84,

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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General*

27,459,125
87,826
312,075
56,843,202
208,231
5,520

529,976

85,445,955

31,750,928
4,435,583
2,864,723
1,850,043
7,059,413
1,933,186
9,501,833
1,546,682
4,699,671

148,319
160

300,945
31,922
939,744

67,363,252

18,082,703

(21,791,055}

1,545,496

(2,162,856)

13,273,573

11,110,717




Other Total
At-Risk Special Capital USDE Governmental Govemmental
K-12 Education Ouilay Pass Through Funds Funds
- - 3,719,748 - 3,852,775 35,031,648
- - - (1,006) 775,575 862,395
- 882 48,223 - 1,120,885 1,482,065
18,336,200 14,672,650 - - 5,314,659 95,166,711
- 4,230,074 - 14,512,009 3,199,624 22,149,938
- - 20,855 - 1,426 27,801
- - - - 8,160,426 8,160,426
- - 41,325 - 1,134,902 1,706,203
18,336,200 18,903,606 3,830,151 14,51E,002 23,560,272 164,587,187
17,649,512 19,621,746 35,849 10,027,151 8,497,018 87,383,104
- 5,901,022 - 4,483,852 949,068 15,769,825
- 620,701 - - 120,520 3,605,944
- - 8,400 - 394,899 2,253,342
96,935 826,893 - - 42,860 8,026,101
- 10,398 22,445 - 205,498 2,171,527
- 331,254 £,686,606 - 215,5M1 12,033,264
- 1,735,300 - - 616,877 3,859,359
- - 1,130,i31 - 250,223 6,080,025
- - - - - 148,319
- - - - 1,056,881 1,057,041
- - - - 8,160,426 8,160,426
- - 908,934 - 5,085,000 6,204,889
- - 3,366 - 1,546,781 1,581,869
- 6,980 13,735,756 - - 14,682,480
17,746,447 29,054,724 17,531,497 14,511,003 27,140,522 173,347,515
589,753 {10,151,188) (£3,701,346) - (3,380,250) (8,760,328)
- 5,389,217 10,251,415 - 3,875,235 19,515,867
- - - - (2,411) (21,793,466)
- 1,129,863 - - §,129,863
- - 1,964 - - £,547,460
589,753 (4,761,971) (2,318,104 - 292,574 (8,360,604)
1,861,245 9,625,318 11,474,837 - 6,403,665 42,638,638
2,450,998 4,863,347 9,156,733 - 6,696,239 34,278,034
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Net change in fund balances - governmental funds $  (8,360,604)

The change in net assets reported for governmental activities in the statement of
activities is different because:

Capital outlays are reported in governmental funds as expenditures, However, in

the statement of activities, the cost of those assets is allocated over their

estimated useful lives as depreciation expense. This is the amount by which

depreciation expense (§ 4,510,542) is greater than capital outlays

($ 14,592,508). 10,081,966

The net effect of various miscellaneous transactions involving capital assets (i.e.
sales, trade-ins and donations) is to decrease net assets. (181,700)

Bond proceeds and premiums are reported as financing sources in governmental
funds and thus contribute to the change in fund balance. In the statement of net
assets, however, issuing debt increases long-term liabilities and does not affect
the statement of activities. Similarly, repayment of principal is an expenditure in
the governmental funds but reduces the liability in the statement of net assets.

Repayments:
General obligation bonds $ 5,085,000
L.and note payable 1,209,889 6,294,889

Governmental funds report the effect of issue costs, premiums, discounts and
similar items when debt is issued. These amounts are deferred and amortized in
the statement of activities. 85,635

Internal service funds are used by the District to charge the costs of prescription

drug plans, dental insurance and worker's compensation insurance to individual
funds, 55,571

Due to the difference between accrual and modified accrual basis of accounting

some expenses recorded in the statement of activities are recorded in different

periods in the governmental funds. These expenses include compensated

absences, other post employment benefits, and accrued interest payable. (1,510,725)

Change in net assets of governmental activities $ 6,465,032

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
June 30, 2012
Textbook/Study
Material Revolving
ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and investments $ 2,854,072
Inventory of supplies and materials, at cost 511,680
Total current assets 3,365,752

Noncurrent assets:
Capital assets not being depreciated -
Furniture, fixtures and equipment -
Less accumulated depreciation -

Total assets 5 3,365,752

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 996,359
Advances due to other funds -
Estimated insurance claims -

Total liabilitics 996,359
Net assets:
Invested in capital assets -
Unrestricted 2,369,363
Total net assets 2,369,393
Total liabilities and net assets $ 3,365,752

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Food
Service

Other

Proprietary

Funds

$ 2,012,479
223,972

113,959

2,236,451

123,266
3,029,917
(1,921,461)

113,959

13,277
(13,277)

$ 3,468,173

113,939

$ 248

89,900

248

89,900

1,231,722
2,236,203

24,059

3,467,925

24,059

$ 3,468,173

113,959

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal
service fund activities related to enterprise funds.

Net assets of business-type activities

23-

Total

Internal
Service
Funds

4,980,510
735,652

2,852,972

5,716,162

123,266
3,043,194
(1,934,738)

2,852,972

6,947,884

2,852,972

996,607
89,900

624,953

1,086,507

624,953

1,231,722
4,629,655

2,228,019

5,861,377

15,631

2,228,019

2,852,972

5,877,008




TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND NET ASSETS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Textbook/Study
Material Revolving

Operating revenues:

Charges for services b 525,486
Other -
Total operating revenues 525,486

Operating expenses:
Insiruction 2,035,702

Student support services
Instructional support -
Business support (18,349)
Central support services -

Plant and maintenance

Depreciation -
Food service support -
Other 286
Total operaling expenses 2,017,639
Operating income (loss} (1,492,153)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):
Loss on disposal of capital assets -
Interest 1,392

State grants .
Federal grants -

Total noneperating revenues (expenses) 1,392

Income (loss) before transfers (1,490,761)

Transfers in 2,013,840
Transfers out -

Change in net assets 523,079

Net assets, beginning of year 1,846,314

Net assets, end of year 3 2,369,393

See accompanying notes to financial statements.

24-



TFFood
Service

Other
Proprietary
Funds

$ 1,131,870
50

767,452
250

1,131,920

767,702

4,353
189,852

84,972
141,623
6,944,689

(212,734)
100,236
9,282

33,217

813,642

7,365,489

743,643

(6,233,569)

24,059

(119)

74,915
6,121,144

6,195,940

(37,629

24,059

(36,241)

(37.629)
3,505,554

(12,182)
36,241

$ 3,467,925

$

24,059

Adjustment to reflect the consolidation of internal service fund
activities related to enterprise funds.

Change in net assets of business-type activities

25.

Total

Internal
Service
Funds

2,424,808
300

4,776,102
73,371

2,425,108

4,849,473

1,822,968
104,589
9,282
171,503

118,189
141,623
6,944,689
813,928

7,120

149,090
5,047,058

26,686

10,126,771

5,229,954

(7,701,663)

(380,481)

(119)
1,392
74,915
6,121,144

3,292

117,164

6,197,332

120,456

(1,504,331)

2,013,840
(36,241)

(260,025)
300,000

473,268

(15,597)

39,975
2,188,044

2,228,019

457,671




Cash flows from operating activities:

Received from user charges
Received from other sources

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Payments to employees for services
Payments to suppliers for goods and services

Net cash used in operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:

Nonoperating grants received
Advances from other funds
Transfers to other funds
Transfers from other funds

Net cash provided by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:

Purchase of capital assets

Cash flows from investing activities:

Interest received

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning

Cash and cash equivalents, ending

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by

operating activities:
Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash used in

operating activities:
Depreciation

Changes in assets and liabilities:

Inventory of supplies
Accounts payable

Estimated insurance claims

Net cash used in operating activities

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Textbook/Study
Material Revolving

$ 525,486

(2,774,097)

(2,248,611)

2,013,840

2,013,840

1,392

(233,379)
3,087,451

$ 2,854,072

$ (1,492,153)

(144,508)
{611,950)

$ (2,248,611)




Food
Service

Other

Proprietary

Funds

1,131,870

50
(2,680,756)
{4,569,987)

767,452

250
(233,291)
(621,554)

(6,118,823)

(87,143)

6,196,059

89,900
(36,241)

6,196,059

53,659

(123,266)

(46,030)
2,058,509

(33,484)
147,443

2,012,479

113,959

(6,233,569)

141,623

(12,986)
(13,891)

24,059

(111,202)

(6,118,823)

(87,143)
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Total

Internal
Service
Funds

$

2,424,808
300

(2,914,047)

(7,965,638)

4,776,102

73,371
(4,302,885)
(785,593)

(8,454,577)

(239,003)

6,196,059
89,900

(36,241)
2,013,840

117,164

300,000

8,263,558

417,164

(123,266)

1,392

3,292

(312,893)
5,293,403

181,451
2,671,521

4,980,510

2,852,972

(7,701,663)

141,623

(157,494)
(737,043)

(380,481)

141,476

(8,454,577)

(239,005)




TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS
STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES
FIDUCIARY FUNDS

June 30, 2012

Assets:
Cash

Liabilities:
Due to student organizations

See accompanying notes to financial statements.
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Agency
$ 427,390
$ 427,390




TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

June 30, 2012

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

The financial statements of Topeka Public Schools, Unified School District No, 501 (the
District) have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) as applied to governmental units. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for establishing
governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. Significant accounting policies of
the District are described below.

Reporting Entity

Topeka Public Schools, Unified School District No. 501 is a municipal corporation governed by
an elected seven-member board. In evaluating the District’s financial reporting entity,
management has considered all potential component units and has determined there are no
component units over which the District is financially accountable. Financial accountability is
based primarily on nonoperational or financial relationships with the District (as distinct from
legal relationships). These financial statements include all the accounts for which the District is
considered to be financially accountable.

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the District, For the most
part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. Governmental
activities, which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported
separately from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for
support,

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function, Program revenues include 1) charges to students who
purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges provided by a given function
and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function, Taxes and other items not properly included among
program revenues are reported instead as general revenues.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO, 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
{Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements (Continued)

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and agency
funds even though the latter are excluded from the government-wide financial statements. The
emphasis of the fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated
and reported as nonmajor funds.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide, proprietary, and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the
economic resources measurement focus. The government-wide and proprietary fund financial
statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recorded when
earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless of when the
related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the District gives (or
receives) value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property
taxes, grants, entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is
recognized in the fiscal year for which the taxes are levied. Revenue from grants, entitlements,
and donations is recognized in the fiscal year in which all eligibility requirements have been
satisfied.

Governmental funds are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and
the modified accrual basis of accounting. With this measurement focus, operating statements
present increases and decreases in net current assets and unreserved fund balance as a measure of
available spendable resources. This means that only current liabilities are generally included on
their balance sheets. Under the modified accrual basis, revenues are recognized when measurable
and available. ‘“Measurable” means the amount of the transaction can be determined and
“available” means collectible within the current period, or soon enough thereafter to pay
liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the District considers revenues to be available
if they are collected within sixty days of the end of the reporting period. Expenditutes are
recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for debt service payments, claims and
judgments, and compensated absences, which ate recognized as expenditures only when a
payment is due. General capital asset acquisitions are reported as expenditures in governmental
funds. Proceeds of general long-term debt and acquisitions under capital leases are reported as
other financing sources and uses.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

The District reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund which is used to account for the general operations of the District and all
unrestricted revenues and expenditures not required to be accounted for in other funds.

K-12 At-Risk Fund which is used to account for revenues and expenditures related to the
cducation and services for at-risk children within the District.

Special Fducation Fund which is used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to the
education and services for special education within the District.

Capital Outlay Fund which is used to account for revenues that are primarily utilized for the
acquisition, construction, repair and remodeling of the District’s buildings.

USDE Pass Through Fund which is used to account for the revenues and expenditures related to
federal grants received from the United States Diepartment of Education.

The District reports the following major enterprise funds:

Textbook/Study Material Revolving which is established pursuant to state law to account for all
monies received and expended attributable to the District’s textbook and study material

programs,

Food Service which is established pursuant to state law to account for all monies received and
expended attributable to the District’s breakfast and lunch programs.

Additionally, the District reports the following fund types:

Internal Service Funds. These funds account for prescription drug plans, dental insurance and
worker’s compensation insurance provided to other departments on a cost-reimbursement basis.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summaty of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Agency Funds. These funds account for monies held for student organizations,

Under GASB Statement No. 20, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Proprietary Funds and
Other Governmental Entities That Use Proprietary Fund Accounting, all proprietary funds
continue to follow Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) standards issued on or before
December 1, 1989. However, from that date forward, proprietary funds have the option of either
1) choosing not to apply future FASB standards (including amendments of earlier
pronouncements), or 2) continuing to follow new FASB pronouncements (unless they conflict
with GASB guidance). The District has chosen not to apply future FASB standards for
proprietary funds.

Proprictary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing goods and services in
connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating
revenues of the District’s proprietary funds are charges to students for sales and services.
Operating expenses for enterprise funds include the cost of sales and services, administrative
expenses, and depreciation on capital assets. All revenue and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and ungestricted resources are available for use, it is the District’s policy to
use restricted first, and then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements, Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the District’s
governmental and business-type activities. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct
costs and program revenues reported for the vatious functions concerned.

Statement of Cash Flows

For the purposes of the statement of cash flows for the proprietary funds, cash and investments
with an original maturity of three months or less are considered to be cash equivalents.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)
Inventory

Inventory is valued at the lower of cost, using the first-in, first-out (FIFO) method, or market.
The cost is recorded as an expenditure at the time individual inventory items are puichased rather
than when consumed,

Capital Assets

Capital assets which include land, buildings, furniture, vehicles, fixtures, equipment and
construction in progress ate reported in the applicable governmental or business-type activities
columns in the government-wide financial statements, Capital assets are defined as assets with
an initial individual cost of more than $ 2,500 and an estimated useful life of more than one year.
Such assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or
materially extend the life of the asset are not capitalized. Major additions and improvements are
capitalized. The District does not capitalize interest on the construction of capital assets.

The District’s capital assets are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lives of the capital assets. The estimated useful lives are:

Buildings 50 years
Vehicles 15 years
Furniture 10 years
Equipment 10 years
Computers 6 years
Video and television equipment 6 years
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Liabilities

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities. Bond
premiums and discounts as well as issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the
bonds using a method that approximates the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are reported as
deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt.

Compensated Absences

Under terms of the District’s personnel policy, District employees are granted vacation and sick
leave in varying amounts. In the event of termination, an employee is paid for accumulated
vacation days up to the maximum of one and one-half years’ vacation.

Employees are only compensated for unused sick leave upon death or retirement, The maximum
amount of sick leave for which an employee may be compensated depends upon the individual’s
length of service but cannot exceed sixty days.

In the government-wide and proprietary financial statements, vacation leave is accrued when
incurred and sick leave is accrued upon attaining eligibility for retirement, Liabilities for these

amounts are reported in governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result
of employee resignations and retirements,

Net Assets
The District’s net assets are classified as follows:

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt — This represents the District’s total investment in
capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and related debt.

Restricted net assets — This includes resources that are legally or contractually obligated to be
spent in accordance with restrictions imposed by external third parties.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies {Continued)

Net Assets (Continued)

Unrestricted net assets — This includes resources derived from charges for services, property
taxes, state appropriations and interest, The resources are used for transactions relating to the
educational and general operations of the District and may be used at the discretion of the Boatd
of Education to meet current expenses in accordance with approved budgets.

Fund Balances

As prescribed by GASB Statement No, 54, governmental funds report fund balance
classifications based primarily on the extent to which the District is bound to honor constraints
on the specific purposes for which amounts in the funds can be spent. As of June 30, 2012, fund
balances for governmental funds are made up of the following:

Nonspendable fund balance — includes amounts that are (a) not in spendable form, or (b) legally
or contractually required to remain intact. The “not in spendable form” criterion includes items
that are not expected to be converted to cash, for example: inventories, prepaid amounts, and
long-term notes receivable.

Restricted fund balance — includes amounts that can be spent only for the specific purposes
stipulated by external resource providers, constitutionally or through enabling legislation.
Restrictions may effectively be changed or lifted only with the consent of resource providers.

Committed fund balance — includes amounts that can only be used for specific purposes
determined by a formal action (resolution) of the District’s highest level of decision-making
authority, the District’s Board. Commitments may be changed or lifted only by the District
taking the same formal action that imposed the constraint originally (for example: resolution or
ordinance).

Assigned fund balance — comprised of amounts intended to be used by the District for specific
purposes that are neither restricted or committed. Intent is expressed by (1) the District’s Board
or (2) a body or official to which the District’s Board has delegated the authority to assign
amounts to be used for specific purposes (General Director of Fiscal Services).

Unassigned fund balance — is the residual classification for the General Fund and includes all
amounts not contained in other classifications. Unassigned amounts are technically available for
any purpose,
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fund Balances (Continued)

In circumstances when an expenditure is made for a purpose which amounts are available in
multiple fund balance classifications, fund balance is depleted in the order of restricted,
committed, assigned, and unassigned.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Pending Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements

At June 30, 2012, the Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) had issued the
following statements not yet implemented by the District:

GASB Statement No. 61, The Financial Reporting Entity: Omnibus an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 14 and No. 34, was issued in November 2010. The objective of this statement is
to improve financial reporting by modifying certain requirements for inclusion of component
units in the financial reporting entity. This statement also amends the criteria and guidance for
reporting component units as if they were part of the primary government (that is, blending).
Additionally, this statement requires a primary government to report its equity interest in a
component unit as an asset. The provisions of this statement are effective for periods beginning
after June 15, 2012,

GASB Statement No. 63, Financial Reporting of Deferred Ouiflows of Resources, Deferred
Inflows of Resources, and Net Position, was issued in June 2011, The objective of this statement
is to improve financial reporting by standardizing the presentation of deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources and their effects on a government’s net position. It
alleviates uncertainty about reporting those financial statement elements by providing guidance
where none previously existed. The provisions of this statement are effective for periods
beginning after December 15, 2011.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Pending Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statements (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 65, Items Previously Reported as Assets and Liabilities, was issued in
March 2012. This Statement establishes accounting and financial reporting standards that
reclassify, as deferred outflows of resources or deferred inflows of resources, certain items that
were previously reported as assets and liabilities and recognizes, as outflows of resources or
inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported as assets and liabilities. This
Statement also provides other financial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial
statement elements deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources, such as
changes in the determination of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the term
deferred in financial statement presentations. In addition, debt issuance costs, except any portion
related to prepaid insurance costs, should be recognized as an expense in the period incurred.
The requirements of this Statement are effective for financial statements for periods beginning
after December 15, 2012. Eatier application is encouraged. Accounting changes adopted to
conform to the provisions of this Statement should be applied retroactively by restating financial
statements, if practical, for all periods presented.

Budgetary Basis of Accounting

Kansas statutes require that an annual operating budget be legally adopted for the general fund,
special revenue funds (unless specifically exempted by statute), debt service funds, and
enterprise funds, The statutes provide for the following sequence and timetable in the adoption
of the legal annual operating budget:

1. Preparation of the budget for the succeeding calendar year on or before August 1st.

2. Publication in local newspaper on or before August 5th of the proposed budget and notice of
public hearing on the budget.

3. Public hearing on or before August 15th, but at least ten days after publication of notice of
hearing.

4. Adoption of the final budget on or before August 25th.
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UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Budgetary Basis of Accounting {Continued)

The statutes allow for the governing body to increase the originally adopted budget for
previously unbudgeted increases in revenue other than ad valorem property taxes. To do this, a
notice of public hearing to amend the budget must be published in the local newspaper. At least
ten days after publication the hearing may be held and the governing body may amend the
budget at that time. The District had no budget amendments for the fiscal year ended June 30,
2012,

The statutes permit transferring budgeted amounts between line items within an individual fund.
However, such statutes prohibit expenditures in excess of the total amount of the adopted budget
of expenditures of individual funds. Budget comparison statements are presented for each
budgeted fund showing actual receipts and expenditures compared to legally budgeted receipts
and expenditures.

All legal annual operating budgets are prepared using the modified accrual basis of accounting
modified further by the encumbrance method of accounting. Revenues are recognized when
cash is received. Expenditures include disbursements, accoun{s payable and encumbrances.
Encumbrances are commitments related to unperformed (executory) contracts for goods or
services and are usually evidenced by a purchase order or written contract.

The following governmental and proprietary funds have annual budgets that are legally adopted:

General Adult Basic Education Special Assessments
Supplemental General Vocational Education Inservice Education
Special Education Adult Supplemental Education  Debt Service

Food Service Capital Outlay Parent Education
Vocational School Special Liability At-Risk (K-12)
Federal Grants KPERS Special Retirement At-Risk (4 year old)
No-Fund Warrants Contribution Summer School
Bilingual Education Gifts and Grants
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Budgetary Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The following governmental and proprietary funds do not require a legally adopted annual
budget:

Self-Insurance Reserve Capital Projects Preseription Drug Self-
Contingency Reserve Risk Management Insurance

Workers’ Compensation Textbook/Study Material Payroll Liability Clearing
Dental Self-Insurance Revolving Internal Service Clearing

All District Activity Funds

The no-fund warrants fund had transfers in excess of budget of $ 2,411 resulting from a transfer
of remaining cash. The special assessments fund had expenditures in excess of budget of
$ 1,115,662 resulting from an unexpected payment of special assessments on District-owned
property sold in the current year.

Cash and Investments

Credit rvisk. Kansas State Statutes authorize the District, with certain restrictions, to deposit or
invest in open accounts, time deposits, certificates of deposit, repurchase agreements, the State of
Kansas Municipal Investment Pool (MIP) and U.S. treasury bills and notes. The District
maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type’s
portion of this pool is shown as cash and investments. In addition, certain cash and investments
are separately held by some of the District’s funds. At June 30, 2012 and throughout the year
ended June 30, 2012, the District’s cash and investments included certificates of deposit and the
MIP. The MIP is overseen by the State of Kansas. The fair value of the District's position in the
MIP is the same as the value of the pool shares, The credit rating for the pool at June 30, 2012 is
AAATL/S1+ (Standard & Poors). Investment earnings, including interest income, are allocated to
the funds required to accumulate interest; other investment earnings are atlocated based on
management discretion.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Cash and Investments (Continued)

Custodial credit risk — deposits and investments. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in
the event of a bank failure, the District’s deposits may not be returned to it. For an investment,
custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will
not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the
possession of an outside party, Statutes require that collateral pledged must have a fair market
value equal to 100% of the deposits (less insured amounts) and investments must be assigned for
the benefit of the District. At June 30, 2012, the District’s deposits were not exposed to custodial
credit risk.

Interest rafe risk. Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in the interest rates may adversely
affect the investment’s fair value., The District does not have a policy to address interest rate
risk.

As of June 30, 2012, maturities of the District’s investments are as follows:

Investments Maturities {in Years)
Tnvestment Type Fair Value Iess than 1 1-5 6-10 More than 10

Municipal Investment Pool § 38,634,930 $ 38,634,930 3 - 3 - $ -

Concentration of credit risk. The District’s investment policy does not place any limitations on
the percentage of the District’s total investments that may be with any one issuer. Kansas
statutes indirectly prohibit such a limitation, as local banks must be given preference on each
investment of idle funds.

Tax Revenue and Taxes Receivable

In accordance with Kansas statutes, property taxes levied during the current year are revenue
sources to be used to finance the budget of the ensuing year. The district’s property tax is levied
each November I on the assessed value as of the prior January 1 for all property located in the
District. Property taxes are due in total by December 20 following the levy date, or they may be
paid in equal installments if paid by December 20 (first installment) and the following May 10
(second installment).



TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

4 - Tax Revenue and Taxes Receivable (Continued)

Assessed values are established by the Shawnee County appraiser's office. The assessed
valuation at January 1, 2011 of the tangible, taxable property for purposes of local taxation was
$ 536,142,672 for the general fund and $ 610,222,316 in total.

The tax levy per $ 1,000 of the November 1, 2011 levy of tangible, taxable property levied for
district taxation was as follows by fund:

General $ 20.000
Supplemental general 25.300
Capital outlay 5.403
Debt service 4.880
Adult education 0.201
Special liability 0.523

$ 56.307
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Capital Assets

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOL.S
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501

TOPEKA, KANSAS

(Continued)

A summary of changes in capital assets follows:

Governmental Activities

Balance Balance
July 1, June 30,
2011 Additions Retirements Transfers 2012
Capital assets, not being depreciated;
Land $ 5,551,463 5 - 5 (67,144) & - $ 5484319
Construction in progress 1,989,102 12,601,337 - (3,033,620) £1,556,819
Total capital assets, net being
depreciated 7,540,565 12,601,337 (67,144) (3,033,620) 17,041,138
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings 159,681,305 895,667 (437,106) 3,033,620 163,173,486
Furnitare, fixtures and equipment 20,719,456 1,095,504 (1,682,859) - 20,132,101
Total capital assets, being depreciated 180,400,761 1,991,171 (2,119,965) 3,033,620 183,305,587
Less accurnulated depreciation (99,724,541) (4,510,542) 2,005,409 - (102,229,674)
Fotal capital assets, being depreciated,
net 80,676,220 (2,519,371) (114,556) 3,033,620 81,075,913
$ 88,216,785 $ 10,081,966 $ (i81,700y § - $ 98,117,051
Business-Type Activities
Balance Balance
July E, June 30,
2001 Additions Retirements Transfers 2082
Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Construction in progress $ - $ 123,266 s - $ - $ 123,266
Capital assets, being depreciated:
Furniture, fixtures and equipment s 3,128,807 h - $ (85,613) 3 - $ 3,043,194
Less accumulated depreciation (1,878,609) (141,623) 85,494 - (1,934,738)
Total capital assets, being depreciated
net 1,250,198 (141,623) (119 - 1,108 456
$ 1,250,198 $ (18,357) 3 (119) S - S 1,231,722
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5 - Capital Assets {Continued)

Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the District as follows:

Governmental activities:

Instruction $ 3,373,851
Instructional support 16,064
School administration 161,023
Plant and maintenance 749,975
Central support services 209,629
Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $ 4,510,542

Business-type activities:
Food service $ 141,623

Project authorizations compared with estimated completed costs from inception for significant
projects open at year-end ave as follows:

Project Expenditures
Authorization to Date
Projects in process:
State Street/Chase classroom and gym $ 4,968,767 $ 4,105,365
Ross/Eisenhower classroom 6,896,760 5,856,886

$ 11,865,527 $ 9,962,251
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6 - Liabilities

(Continued)

The following is a summary of changes in long-term debt for the year ended June 30, 2012:

General obligation bonds paid
with ad valorem taxes
Add unamortized preminm
on bonds
Less unamortized deferred
refunding difference

Post employment benefits
Compensated absences

Mortgage note payable

Balance Balance Due Within
July 1,2011 Additions Reductions June 30, 2012 One Year
$ 33,100,000 $ - 5,085,000 § 28,015,000 § 5,605,000
546,571
(317,390)
S osamls
$ 11,217,181 $ 6,532,355 5,223,487 § 12,526,049 $ -
§ 2,532,071 § 1,311,638 998,614 $ 2,845,095 8 998,614
$ 1,209,889 & - 1,209,889 $ - 3 -

For governmental activities, the general fund is typically used to liquidate post employment
benefits and compensated absences.

General Obligation Bonds

General obligation bonds consisted of the following at June 30, 2012:

Final Original Principal Amount
Date Scheduled Principal Outstanding Interest
Series Issued Maturity Amount June 30, 2012 Ranges
2002 4/1/2002 2/1£2013 24,500,000 $ 1,800,000 4.5% to 5.0%
2005 4/1/2005 8/1/2015 19,850,000 12,140,000 4.0% to 5.0%
2007 37112007 2/172016 16,020,000 14,075,000 4.0% to 5.0%
60,370,000 $ 28,015,000
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Liabilities (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the bonds are as follows:

Year Principal Interest Total

2013 $ 5,605,000 $ 1,296,656 $ 6,901,656
2014 6,110,000 1,025,906 7,135,906
2015 8,350,000 724,828 9,074,828
2016 7,950,000 347,500 8,297,500
Total 3 28,015,000 $ 3,394,890 $ 31,409,890

Bonded Indebtedness Limitation

Kansas statutes restrict the level of the authorized and outstanding bonded indebtedness of the
District to not more than 14% of the assessed value of tangible, taxable property within the
District,

At June 30, 2012, based on the assessed valuation of $ 610,222,316, the general obligation limit
of $ 85,431,124 exceeds the District's bonded indebtedness by $ 60,558,397, after consideration
of $ 3,142,273 available for debt service in the Debt Service Fund.

State Aid

The District expended monies in excess of available cash in the General Fund. This was a result
of the State of Kansas failing to make its final state aid payments before June 30, 2012, The
District was instructed by the State Department of Education to expend the authorized budget for
the year ended June 30, 2012 in accordance with Senate Bill 4, The balance of monies due the
District from the State was received in July 2012,
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Retirement Benefits

KPERS

Plan Description. The District participates in the Kansas Public Employees Retirement System
(KPERS), a cost-sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan as provided by K.S.A.
74-4901, et seq. KPERS provides retirement benefits, life insurance, disability income benefits
and death benefits. Kansas law establishes and amends benefit provisions. KPERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required supplementary
information. That report may be obtained by writing to KPERS (611 S. Kansas Avenue, Suite
100; Topeka, KS 66603-3803) or by calling 1-888-275-5737.

Funding Policy. K.S.A. 74-4919 establishes the KPERS member-employee contribution rate at
4% of covered salary for all employees hired prior to June 30, 2009, KSA 74-49,210 establishes
the KPERS member-employee contribution rate of 6% of covered salary for all employees hired
after June 30, 2009. Member-employees’ contributions are withheld by the District and paid to
KPERS according to the provisions of Section 414(h) of the Internal Revenue Code. The State
of Kansas is required to contribute the remaining amount necessary to achieve the actuarially
determined contribution rate. The State of Kansas currently contributes 9.77% of covered
payroll for July t, 2011 to March 31, 2012 and 8.77% of covered payroll from April 1, 2012 to
June 30, 2012. These contribution requirements are established by KPERS and are periodically
revised, Kansas’ contributions to KPERS for all Kansas public school employees for the years
ending June 30, 2012, 2011 and 2010 were $ 298,635,383, $ 253,834,044 and $ 248,468,186,
respectively, equal to the statutorily required contributions for each year. During the year ended
June 30, 2012, payments made by the State to KPERS on behalf of the District totaled
$ 8,160,426.
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Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits

Plan_Description. The District offers postemployment benefits to retived employees. The
benefits are provided through a single employee defined benefit postemployment plan
administered by the District. Kansas statutes provide that postemployment healthcare benefits be
extended to retired employees who have met age and/or service eligibility requirements until the
individuals become eligible for Medicare coverage at age 65. The District’s employee benefit
plan provides the same medical, pharmacy and dental benefits to eligible retirees and their
dependents as it does to active employees, until age 66 for administrators and age 65 for all other
retirees. In addition, the District provides an eatly retirement incentive to eligible employees who
retite before age 65 and a life insurance benefit through age 67 for administrators. The District
pays the equivalent of the Base Plan premiums on behalf of retirees, and the retirees who have
chosen the Buy-up plan pay the additional cost of the plan. Spouses pay 100% of the premiums.
Full-time employees are eligible to retire at age 60 with at least 10 years of service with the
District, Part-time employees are eligible to retive at age 60 with at least 15 years of service. The
benefit is available for selection at retirement and is extended to retirees and their dependents
until the individuals become eligible for Medicare at 65. The plan does not issue a stand-alone
financial report.

As of June 30, 2012, the District has approximately 240 employees who are eligible to receive
eatly retirement benefits. The benefits vary based on the employee classification. Classified
employees receive $ 250 in cash and $ 359 in health insurance or cash in lieu of health insurance
monthly until their sixty-fifth birthday. Certified employees receive one-third of the ceitified
base salary monthly and $ 365 in health insurance monthly until their sixty-fifth birthday.
Administrators receive $ 1,200 a month in cash and $ 359 in health insurance plus $ 19 in life
insurance on a monthly basis, General directors and above receive up to an additional $ 768 per
month. The District’s contributions are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. During the year
ended June 30, 2012, payments to early retirees along with insurance benefits totaled
approximately $ 3,595,000. These amounts are reflected in general fund instruction and support
services expenditures.

Funding Policy. The District provides health insurance benefits to retirees and their dependents
in accordance with Kansas law (K.S.A. 12-5040). Kansas statute, which may be amended by the
state legislature, establishes that participating retirees may be required to contribute to the
employee group health benefits plan, including administrative costs.
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NOTES TO BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Continued)

Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)

The District appropriates funds annually for the costs associated with this retirement benefit and
provides funding for the expenditures on a pay-as-you-go basis through the General Fund. In
fiscal year 2012, the District contributed $ 5,223,487 to the plan.

Annual OPEB Cost and Net OPEB_Obligation. The District’s annual OPEB (other post
employment benefit) cost is calculated based on the annual required contribution (ARC) of the
employer, an amount actuarially determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB
Statement 45, The ARC represents a level of funding that, if paid on an ongoing basis, is
projected to cover normal cost each year and amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities over a
period of not to exceed thirty years. The following table presents the components of the District’s
annual OPEB cost for the year, the amount contributed to the plan, and changes in the District’s
net OPEB obligation.

Annual required contribution $ 6,799,037
Interest on amortized liability 224,344
Adjustment to the ARC (491,026)
Annual OPEB cost (expense) 6,532,355
Contributions made (5,223,487)
Increase in net OPEB obligation 1,308,868
Net OPEB obligation, July 1, 2011 11,217,181
Net OPEB obligation, June 30, 2012 $ 12,526,049

The premium rates for retires are based on the blended experience of both younger active
employees and older retirees. The difference between age-appropriate rates for the retirees and
the group’s rates comprises the District’s implicit subsidy for post-employment benefits. The
age-appropriate rates are derived by applying aging factors to the expected claims for the
retirees. In future years, the District intends to continue subsidizing the premiums paid for
retirees.
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Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits (Continued)

The District’s annual OPEB cost, the percentage of annual OPEB cost contributed to the plan,
and the net OPEB obligation for fiscal years 2012, 2011, 2010, 2009 and 2008 are as follows:

End of Year

Annual Net Employer Percentage Net OPEB

Fiscal Year QPEB Cost Contributions Contributed Obligation
2012 $ 6,532,355 $ 5,223,487 79.96% § 12,526,049
2011 $ 6,941,605 $ 5,484,765 79.01% $ 11,217,181
2010 $ 7,010,877 $ 4,097,127 58.44% $ 9,760,341
2009 $ 6,561,447 $ 3,321,935 50.63% $ 6,846,591
2008 $ 6,047,203 $ 3,040,124 45.74% $ 3,007,079

Funded Status and Funding Progress. As of June 30, 2012, the most recent actuarial valuation
date, the actuarial accrued liability for benefits was $ 59,665,538. The District’s policy is to fund
the benefits on a pay-as-you-go basis, resulting in an unfunded actuarial accrued liability
(UAAL) of $ 59,665,538. The covered payroll (annual payroll of active employees covered by
the plan) was $ 92,629,011, and the ratio of the UAAL to the covered payroll was 64.4 percent,

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and
assumptions about the probability of occurrence of events far into the future. The valuation
includes, for example, assumptions about future employment, mortality and the healthcare cost
trends. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of the plan and the annual required
contributions of the employer are subject to continual revision as actual results are compared
with the past expectations and new estimates are made about the future. The schedule of funding
progress will present in time, multi-year trend information about whether the actuarial value of
the plan assets is increasing or decreasing relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for benefits.

Actuarial Methods and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for financial reporting purposes are
based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan members) and
include the types of benefits provided at the time of valuation and the historical pattern of
sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point, The actuarial
methods and assumptions used include techniques that are designed to reduce the effects of
short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and actuarial value of assets, consistent with
the long-term perspective of the calculations.
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Other Postemployment Healthcare Benefits {Continued)

In the June 30, 2012 actuarial valuation, the projected unit credit method was applied. The
actuarial assumptions included a 2 percent investment rate of return (net of administrative
expenses), which is the expected rate of investment return on the District’s assets, and an annual
health care cost trend rate of 8 percent initially, reduced by decrements to an ultimate rate of 5
percent after six years. The UAAL is being amortized using the level dollar of projected payroll
method over a period of 30 years with the remaining amortization period of 30 years. The
amortization period used is open.

Interfund Transactions

A summary of transfers for the year is as follows:

Transfers from

Other Other
Nonmajor Nonmajor
General Governmental Proprictary
Transfers to Fund Funds Funds Total
Governmental funds:
Special education $  5,389.217 5 - $ - $ 5389217
Capital outlay 10,215,174 - 36,241 10,251,415
Other nonmajor funds 3,875,235 - - 3,875,235
19,479,626 - 36,241 19,515,867
Proprietary funds:
Internal service funds 300,000 - - 300,000
Textbook/Study material 2,011,429 2411 - 2,013,840
$ 21,791,055 $ 2,411 S 36,241 § 21,829,707

Transfers are used to move unrestricted monies to finance various programs that the District
must account for in other funds in accordance with budgetary authorizations, including amounts
provided as matching funds for various grants and to close out finished capital project funds.

At June 30, 2012, $ 89,900 is due from other nonmajor proprietary funds to the general fund for
advances made during the year.
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Commitments and Contingencies

Risk Management

The District is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction
of assets; business interruptions; errors and omission; injuries to employees and natural disasters.
Commercial insurance coverage is purchased for claims arising from such matters other than
those relating to workers' compensation, dental, and prescription drugs. Settled claims from
these risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverage in any of the past three fiscal
years, There have been no decreases in insurance coverage from the prior year.

Self-Insurance Funds

The District has established internal service funds for self insured worker’s compensation, dental
insurance, and prescription drugs. The worker’s compensation program began in July 1993, the
dental insurance program began in September 2005, and the prescription drug plan began in
2007 for District employees.

Funds are accumulated for payment of claims and insurance premiuims through charges to the
District’s funds. Currently, the District is funding the Worker’s Compensation Reserve Fund
with annual contributions of approximately $ 1,000,000. The dental and prescription self-
insured funds are funded with contributions made during each payroll period from the employer
and the employees. All plans are administered by a third party, which accumulates claims.
During 2012, the District’s maximum responsibility for payment of worker’s compensation
benefits was $ 500,000 per occurrence ($ 1,000,000 in aggregate). The District’s maximum
responsibility for payment of dental insurance benefits was § 1,500 per year. There is no
maximum for prescription benefits. The District purchases commercial insurance for claims in
excess of the maximum and for all other risks of loss. The claims liability at June 30, 2012 is
based on the requirements of Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement No. 10,
which requires that a liability for claims be reported if information prior to the issuance of the
financial statements indicates that it is probable that a liability has been incurred at the date of
the financial statements and the amount of the loss can be reasonably estimated.
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Commitments and Contingencies (Continued}

Self-Insurance Funds (Continued)

The claims liability of $ 624,953 is included in the governmental funds column of the statement
of net assets as estimated insurance claims. Changes in the claims liability for the years ended
June 30, 2012 and 2011 were:

Beginning Claims and End
of Year Change in Premium of Year
Liability Estimate Payments Liability
2012 5 483,477 $ 660,425 $ 518,949 $ 624,953
2011 $ 327,480 5 824,841 $ 068,844 $ 483,477

No amounts have been reflected in the financial statements for dental insurance claims liability
and prescription drug claims liability as of June 30, 2012.

There have been no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year and no
settlements have exceeded insurance coverage for each of the past three fiscal years.

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
grantor agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed expenditures, including
amounts already collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any,
of expenditures that may be disallowed by the grantor cannot be determined at this time,
although the District expects such amounts, if any, to not be material to the financial statements.

Litigation

The District is a defendant in vatious lawsuits. Although the outcome of these lawsuits is not
presently determinable, in the opinion of the District’s counsel the resolution of these matters
will not have a material adverse effect on the financial condition of the District.
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Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Encumbrances

The District uses encumbrances to control expenditure commitments for the year and to enhance
cash management. Encumbrances represent commitments related to executory contracts not yet
performed and purchase orders not yet filled. Commitments for such expenditure of monies are
encumbered to reserve a portion of applicable appropriations. Encumbrances still open at year-
end are not accounted for as expenditures and liabilities, but, rather, as restricted, committed, or
assigned fund balance. At June 30, 2012, the District’s recorded encumbrances in governmental
funds were as follows:

General $ 1,750,170
At-risk K-12 6,645
Capital outlay 3,389,974
Special education 28,979
Other nonmajor governmental funds 155,143

$ 5,330,911
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO, 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
FUNDS INCLUDED IN THE COMBINED GENERAL FUND (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

General
Budget Variance
Original Final Actual Over (Under)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Tn process 3 96,738 $ 96,738 % 265,764 % 163,020
Current 9,523,723 9,523,123 0,882,177 358,454
Delinquent 294,262 294,262 615,639 321,377
Intergovernmental:
Federat - - 39,554 39,554
State and lacal 79,461,865 79,461,865 71,620,339 ([,841,520)
Reimbursed expenses - - 459,085 450,085
Total revenues £9,376,388 §9,376,588 88,882,558 94,0309
Expenditures;
Current:
Instruetion 31,013,981 31,013,981 29.470,104 (1,543,877)
Support services 30,320,507 30,820,507 29,497,142 {1,323,365)
Budget adjustment to comply with legal max (1,561,140) {1,561,140) 1,561,140
Total expenditures subject to budget 60,273,348 60,273,348 58,967,246 (1,306,102)
Expenditures not subject to budget:
Reimbursed expenses 459,085 459,085
Total expenditures 60,273,348 60,273,348 54,426,331 (847,07)
Excess of revenues over expenditures 29,103,240 29,103,240 29,436,227 352,987
Other firancing sources and uses:
Transfers in 3,032,807 3,032,807 3,032,807 -
Transfers out (30,574,907} (30,574,907) (31,881,069 1,305,102
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures
and other financing uses 1,561,140 1,561,140 608,025 $ (933,115)
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis - - (6,118,508)
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis 3 1,561,140 5 1,561,140 (5,510,883)
Reconeiligtion to GAAP
Plus receivables at Juns 30, 2042 5,510,883
Plus inventories at June 30, 2012 142,359
Plus encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012 757,175
Fund batance on the basis of GAAP - General Fund only 899,534
Fund balances for separately budpeted funds included with the General Fund on GAAP basis financials:
Supplemental General 2,360,277
Inservice Education 376,057
Summer School 115,791
Pepsi Exclusivity - included ir gifts and grants 98,582
Sports Park Operations - included in gifs and grants 613,201
Fund balances for non-budgeted funds included with the General Fund on GAAP basis financials;
Internal Service Reserve -
Payroll Liability Clearing -
Self-insurance Reserve 1,331,333
Risk Managenent Reserve 1,665,047
Contingency Reserve 3,650,595

. S 11,110,717
(Continued) —_—
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL BPISTRICT NO, 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
FUNDS INCLUDED IN THE COMBINED GENERAL FUND (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Supplemental General

Varzance
Budget Over
Original Final Aclual {Under)
Revenues:
Taxes:
In process 3 149,328 5 149,328 $ 346,732 $ 197,404
Current 14,527,922 14,527,922 15,585,210 1,057,288
Delinquent 394,917 391017 763,603 368,686
Interest - - 121 121
Other B - 19,826 19,826
Intergovernmental:
State and local 14,249,118 14,249,118 14,730,057 480,939
Total revenues 29,321,285 29,321,285 31,445,549 2,124,264
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction 4,759,036 4,759,036 2,030,608 (2,728, 428)
Support services 3,538,852 3,538,852 3,657,243 £18,391
Adjustment to comply with Jegal max (147,220) (147,220) 147,220
Total expenditures 8,150,668 8,150,668 5,687,851 (2,462,817)
Excess of revenues over expenditures 21,170,617 21,170,687 25,757,698 4,587,081
Cther financing uses:
Transfers out (22,071,141} (22,071,141) (24,533,958) 2,462,817
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures and other financing uses {900,524) (800,524) 1,223,740 s 2,124,264
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 1,047,744 L7, 744 171,151
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis 5 147,220 $ 147,220 1,394,891
Reconciliation to GAAP
Plus receivables at June 30, 2012 836,196
Plus encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012 109,150
Fund balance on the basis of GAAP % 2,360,277
(Continued)
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
FUNDS INCLUDED IN THE COMBINED GENERAL FUND (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Summer School
Variance
Budget Over
Qriginal Final Actual (Under)
Revenues:
Tuition $ 45,007 $ 45,007 % 19,809 5 (25.198)
Other 33,770 33,770 - (33,770)
Intergovernmental:
Fedaral - - 92,743 92,743
Total revenues 78,777 18,717 112,552 33,775
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction 208,370 208,370 126,063 (82,307)
Support services 8,438 8,438 8,730 292
Total expenditunes 216,808 216,308 134,793 (82,015)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (138,031) (138,031) (22,241) 5 115,790
Fund bzalances, beginning of year, budget basis 138,031 138,01 138,032
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - $ 3 115,791
(Continued)
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
FUNDS INCLUDED IN THE COMBINED GENERAL FUND (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Federal
Interest

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current:
Support services

Excess (deficiency) of revenaes over (under) expenditures
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis

Reconciliation to GAAP
Plus encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012

Fund balance on the basis of GAAP

Inservice Education
Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
$ - - 3 75,934 % 75,934
1,000 1,000 279 (721)
1,000 1,000 76,213 75,213
571,250 571,250 296,717 (274,533)
(570,250} (570,250} 220,504y 349,746
570,250 570,250 570,252
3 - - 349,748
26,309
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL. MAJOR BUDGETED
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012
Special Education
Variance
Budget Over
QOriginal Final Actual (Under)
Revenrues:
Intergovernmental:
Federal $ 3,956,303 $ 3,956,303 § 4,230,074 $ 273,771
State and local 20,000 20,000 11,920 (8,080)
Qther - - 882 882
Total revenues 3,976,303 3,076,303 4,242 876 266,573
Expenditures:
Cumrent:
Instrection 27,120,352 27,120,352 19,623,515 (7,496,837)
Support services 8,012,446 8,012,446 9,417,338 1,405,392
Total expenditures 35,132,798 35,132,798 20,041,353 (6,091,445)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over {under)
expenditures (31,150,495} (31,156,495) (24,798,477) 6,358,018
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 21,573,597 21,573,597 20,049,947 (1,523,650)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and cther financing
sources over (under) expenditures (9,582,898} (9,582,898) (4,748,530) 3 4,834,368
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 0,582,808 9,582,898 9,582,893
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - s - 4,834,368
Reconciliation to GAAP
Plus encumbrances ouistanding at June 30, 2012 28,979
Fund balance on the basis of GAAP $ 4,863,347

(Continued)
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL MAJOR BUDGETED
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Revenues;
Taxes;
In process
Current
Delinguent
Interest
Other

Total revenues

Expenditures:
Current;
Instruction
Support services
Facilities acquisition and construction

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (urder)
expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in
Sales of capital assets
Insurance reimbursements

Total other financing sources

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sourees over {under) expendituzes

Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis

Fund balances, end of year, budget basis

Reconciliation to GAAP
Plus receivables at June 30, 2012
Plus encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012

Fund balance on the basis of GAAP

Capital Outlay
Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual Under)
$ 30,067 ] 30,067 s 69,813 $ 39,746
3,350,856 3,350,856 3,425,821 74,965
79,515 79,515 224,114 144,599
- - 26,515 26,515
- - 89,548 89,548
3,460,438 3,460,438 3,835,811 375,373
1,962,603 1,962,603 314,387 (1,648,216)
1,216,163 1,216,163 2,187,201 971,038
15,637,267 15,637,267 15,762,432 125,165
18,816,033 18,816,033 18,264,020 (552,013)
{15,355,593) (15,355,595) (14,428,209} 927,386
6,515,174 6,515,174 10,251,415 3,736,241
- - 1,129,863 1,129,863
- - 1,964 1,964
6,515,174 6,515,174 11,383,242 4,868,068
(8,840,421) (8,840,421) (3.044967) § 5795454
8,840,421 8,840,421 8,811,160
$ - $ - 5,766,193
566
3,389,974
$ 9,156,733
(Continued)
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SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL MAJOR BUDGETED
SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

At-Risk K- 12
Variance
Budget Over
Original Fina! Actual {Under)
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction $ 20,108,860 $ 20,108,860 $ 17,656,148 S (2,452,7112)
Support services 88,575 88,575 96,935 8,360
Total expenditures 20,197,435 20,197,435 17,753,083 (2,444,352)
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 18,336,200 18,336,200 18,336,200 -
Excess {deficiency) of other financing sources over
(under) expenditures (1,861,235) (1,861,235) 583,117 $ 2,444,352
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 1,861,235 1,861,235 1,861,236
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - $ - 2,444,353
Recongiliation to GAAP
Pius encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012 6,045

Fund batance on the basis of GAAP $ 2,450,998



TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

Schedule of Funding Progress

Health Insurance

Postemployment Benefits

Actaarial Accrued

Schedule 3

Actuarial Liability (AAL) Unfunded Annual UAAl.asa
Actuarial Value of Projected AAL Funded Covered Percentage of
Valuation Assets Unit Credit (UAAL) Ratio Payroell Covered Payrell
Date (w) ® (b-a) {w'b) (c) {{b-a)fc)
6/30/2012 $ 5 59,665,538 $ 59,665,538 0.0% $ 92,629,011 64.4%
6/30/2010 $ § 60,546,932 $§ 60,546,932 0.0% $ 96,219,194 63.0.%
6/30/2008 5 $ 55824514 $ 55824514 0.0% $ 95,116,898 58.7%
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Schedule 4
TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOQOLS
UNIEIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL BUDGETED PROPRIETARY FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Fouod Service
Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
Pederal $ 4910588 $ 4,910,588 § 6,121,144 $ 1,210,556
State and local 55,005 55,005 74,015 19,910
Other 1,561,010 [,561,010 1,131,920 (429,000)
Total revenues 6,526,603 6,526,603 7,327,979 801,376
Expenditures:
Current:
Support services 268,586 268,586 274,974 6,388
Noninstructional services 8,266,527 8,266,527 7,076,350 (1,190,177)
Total expenditures 8,535,113 8,535,113 7,358,324 (1,183,789
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (2,008,510} (2,008,510) (23,345) 1,985,165
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 2,008,510 2,003,510 1,994,334
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis S - $ - 1,970,989
Reconciliation to GAAP
Pius inventories at June 30, 2012 223,972
Net adjustment for capitalization of assets 1,231,722
Plus encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012 41,242
Fuund balance on the basis of GAAP S 3,467,925

(Continued)
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Schedule 4 (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL BUDGETED PROPRIETARY FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Vocational School

Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
Revenues:
Tuition $ - $ - $ - $
Expenditures not subject to budget:
Current:
Support services - reimbursed expenses - - (70,0000 (70,000)
Excess of revenues over expenditures - - 70,000 % 70,600

Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis - - -

Fund batances, end of year, budget basis $ - 3 - 8 70,000
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Schedule 5
TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL BUDGETED DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Debt Service
Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
Revenues:
Taxes:
In process $ 33,022 s 33,022 $ 76,673 S 43,65t
Current 3,039,584 3,039,584 3,100,905 61,321
Delingeent 87,328 87,328 191,405 104,077
Intergovernmental:
State and local 3,694,920 3,694,920 2,897,420 (797,500
Interest 3,000 3,000 1,174 (1,826)
Total revenues 6,857,854 6,857,854 6,267,577 (590,277)
Expenditures:
Debt Service:
Principal 5,085,000 5,085,000 5,085,000 -
Interest 2,344,281 2,344,281 1,546,781 {197,500)
Total expenditures 7,429,281 7,429,281 6,631,781 (797,300)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under} expenditures (571,427) (571,427 (3e4,204) § 207,223
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 3,506,477 3,506,477 3,506,477
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ 2,935,050 $ 2935050 $ 3,142,273

{Continued)
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Schedule 5, (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL BUDGETED DEBT SERVICE FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

No-Fund Warrants

Variance
Budgcl Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
Revenues:
Taxes:
Delinquent 8 - § - $ 2411 $ 2411
Other financing uses;
Transfer out - - (2,411) 2,411

BExcess of revenues over expenditures
and other uses “ - - $

Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis - -

Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - $ - 5
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Schedule 6
TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDUILES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Special Liability

Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
Revenues:
Taxes:
In process 3 2,665 N 2,665 5 6,184 $ 3,519
Current 309,082 309,082 316,891 7,809
Delinquent 7,043 7,043 11,050 4,007
Interest - - 71 71
Total revenues 318,790 318,790 334,196 15,406
Expenditures:
Current:
Support services 390,000 390,000 248,405 (141,595}
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (71,210) (71,210) 85,791 $ 157,001
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 79,230 79,230 18,231
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ 8,020 $ 8,020 165,022

Reconciliation to GAAP

Plus encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012 26,546
Fund balance on the basis of GAAP $ 191,568
(Continued)
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Schedule 6, (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Adult Basic Education
Vadance
Budget Over
Qriginal Final Actual {Under)
Revenues:
Taxes:
In process $ 1,904 3 1,904 S 4,421 s 2,517
Curcent 130,538 130,538 131,933 1,395
Delinquent 5,036 5,036 10,887 5,851
Tntergovernmental:
Federal 99,172 99,172 103,760 4,588
State and Iocal 61,673 61,673 64,243 2,570
Interest - - 34 34
Other 9,000 9,000 27,437 18,437
Total revenues 307,323 307,323 342,715 35,392
Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction 353,737 353,737 322,112 (35,625)
Support services 21,276 21,276 18,711 (2,565)
Total expenditures 375,013 375,013 340,823 (34,190)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures (67,690) (67,690) 1,802 3 69,582
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 67,690 67,690 67,691
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - b - 69,383
Reconciliation to GAAP
Plus encuinbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012 6,074
Fund balance on the basis of GAAP 3 75,657

(Continued)
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Schedule 6, (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL. NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Vecational Education

Variance
Budget Over
Qriginal Final Actual {Under)
Expenditures:
Current;
Instruction $ 1,909,870 S 1,909,870 S 1,561,775 $ (348,095)
Support services 49,498 49,498 51,299 1,801
Total expenditures 1,959,368 1,959,368 1,613,074 (346,294)
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 1,600,000 1,600,060 1,600,000 -
Excess (deficiency) of other sources over
(under) expenditures (359,368) (359,368) (13,074) 3 346,294
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 359,368 359,368 359,368
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - $ - 346,294

Recongciliation to GAAP

Plus encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012 7,039
Fund balance on the basis of GAAP $ 353,333
(Continued)
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Schedule 6, (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Special Assessments
Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
Revenues:
Taxes:

Delinquent $ . $ - 3 15 s 15
Other - - 1,1£5,657 1,115,657
Interest - - 12 12

Total revenues - - 1,115,684 1,115,684
Expenditures;
Current:
Special assessments - - 1,306,664 1,306,064
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures - - {190,980y § {190,980)
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis - - 191,003
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - $ - 5 23

(Continued)
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Schedule 6, (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Bilingual Education
Variance
Budget Qver
QOriginal Final Actual (Under)
Expenditures:
Cuarent:
Instruction $ 2,256,639 $ 2,256,639 $ 2,152,053 S (104,586)
Support services 795,916 795,916 600,706 (129,210)
Total expenditures 3,052,555 3,052,555 2,818,759 (233,795)
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 3,011,657 3,011,657 3,011,657 -
Excess (deficiency) of other sources over (under)
expenditures (40,898 (40,898) 192,898 $ 233,796
Fund balances, beginning of year, budgzt basis 40,398 40,898 40,898
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis s - $ - 233,796
Reconciliation to GAAP
Plus encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012 42,198
Fund halance on the basis of GAAP $ 275,994

(Continued)
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NQO. 501

TOPEKA, KANSAS

Schedule 6, (Con't.)

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State and local
Other

Total revenues
Expenditures:
Current:

Support services

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under)
expenditures

Other financing sources:
Transfers in

Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other sources
over (under) expenditures

Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis

Reconciliation to GAAP
Plus encumbrances outstanding at June 30, 2012

Pund balance on the basis of GAAP

Parent Education

Yariance
Budget Qver
Qriginat Final Actual (Under)
$ 471,154 471,154 $ 694,489 $ 223,335
231,591 231,591 241,939 10,348
702,745 702,745 936,428 233,683
950,000 950,000 800,430 (149,570)
(247,255) (247,255) 135,998 383,253
168,420 168,420 168,420 -
(78,835) (78,835) 304,418 $ 383,253
78,835 78,835 {144,499)
$ - - 159,919
22,602
5w
(Continued)
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIEIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

Schedule 6, (Con't.)

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Adult Supplemental Education

Variance
Budget Over

Qriginal Final Actual (Under)

Other financing uses:
Transfers out $ 36,241 5 36,241 s 36,241 s
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 36,241 36,241 36,241
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - $ - ¥
(Continued)
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501

TOPEKA, KANSAS

Schedule 6, {Con't.)

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

At-Risk 4 Year Old

Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual {Under)
Expenditures:
Current;
Instruction $ 1,019,376 $ 1,019,376 % 873,962 $ {145,414)
Other financing sources:
Transfers in 941,000 941,000 941,000
Excess (deficiency) of other sources over
(under) expenditures (78,376) (78,376) 67,038 3 145,414
Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis 78,376 78,376 78,377
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - $ - 145,415
Recongiliation to GAAP
Plus encumbrances outstanding at Jane 30, 2012 1,134
Fund balance on the basis of GAAP $ 146,549
(Continued)
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TOPEKA PUBILIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

Schedule 6, (Con't.)

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL. NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Revenues:
Intergovernmental:
State and local

Expenditures:
Current:
Instruction
Support services
Noninstructional services

Total expenditures

Excess of revenues over expenditures

Fund balances, beginning of year, budget basis

Fund balances, end of year, budget basis

Year Ended June 30, 2012

KPERS Special Retirement Contribution

Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
$ 10,999,857 $ 10,999,857 9,979,448 $ (1,020,409)
7,479,902 1,419,902 - {7,479,902)
3,244,959 3,244,959 8,160,426 4,915,467
274,996 274,996 - (274,996}
10,999,857 10,999,857 8,160,426 (2,839,431)
.- - 1,819,022 3 1,819,022
- - (1,819,022)
$ $
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Schedule 6, (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULES OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - ALL NONMAJOR BUDGETED FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012
Gifts and Granis
Budget Yariance
Original Finat Actual Over (Under)
Revenues:
Local $ 1,112,812 S 1,112,812 $ 616,416 $ (496,396}
Interest - - 3,213 3213
Charges for services - - 1,059,718 1,059,718
Miscellaneous [00 100 51,316 51,216
Tatal revenues 1,112,942 1,112,912 1,730,663 617,751
Expenditures:
Cureent:
Instruction 235,386 235,386 357,676 122,290
Instructional support staff 25 25 14,072 14,047
General administration 44,590 44,590 28,423 (16,167)
School administration 210,935 210,935 (1,930) (212,865)
Student support services - - 156,910 156,910
Supplemental services central 173,840 173,840 62,564 (111,276)
Support services business - - 343,710 343,710
Operations and maintenance 243,600 243,000 38,053 (204,947)
Transportation - - 355 355
Enterprisc operations 1,595,768 1,595,768 957,115 (638,653)
Principal - - 300,945 300,945
Interest expense - - 31,722 31,722
Total expenditures 2,503,544 2,503,544 2,289,615 (213,929)
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over (under) expenditures (1,390,632) (1,390,632) (558,952) 831,680
Other financing sources:
Transfers in - - 36,000 (36,000
Excess (deficiency) of revenues and other financing
sources over (under) expendilures (1,390,632) (1,390,632) (522952y 8§ 867,680
Fund batances, beginning of year, budget basis 1,390,632 1,390,632 1,390,632
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis $ - S - 3 867,680
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Schedule 7
TOPEXA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AN CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -
BUDGET AND ACTUAL - FEDERAL GRANT FUNDS (BUDGET BASIS)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal Grants
Variance
Budget Over
Original Final Actual (Under)
Revenues:
Intergovernmentak:
Federal $ 14,304,391 3 14,304,391 § 16,470,035 $ 2,165,644
State and local - - 79,690 79,690
14,304,391 14,304,391 16,549,725 2,245,334
Expenditures
Current:
Instruction 9,577,088 9,577,088 12,061,959 2,484,871
Support services 3,831,637 3,831,637 3,201,947 (539,690)
Noninstructional services 1,581,000 1,581,000 1,414,691 (166,309)
Total expenditures 14,989,725 14,989,725 16,768,597 1,778,872
Excess (deficiency) revenues over
{under) expenditures (685,334) (685,334) (218,872) 3 466,462
Fund batances, beginning of year, budget basis - - (136,867)
Fund balances, end of year, budget basis 3 685,334y §$ (685,334) $ (355,739
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Schedule 8

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS
COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-
ALL AGENCY FUNDS
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2011 Additions Deductions 2012
Senior High Schools
Athletic Support Groups:
Highland Park $ £,884 3 7,983 $ 6,057 3 3,810
Topeka High 16,321 14,653 17,063 13,911
Topeka West 11,386 44,879 38,859 17,406
29,591 67,515 61,979 35,127
Graduating Classes:
Highland Park 1,217 3,578 2,434 2,361
Topeka High 13,428 6,816 9314 10,930
Topeka West 16,049 14,899 9,026 21,922
30,694 25,293 20,774 35,213
Clubs and Organizations:
Highland Park 5,710 24,330 23,536 6,504
Topeka High 51,829 106,619 107,663 50,785
Topeka West 23,272 58,621 53,879 28,014
80,811 189,570 185,078 85,303
Miscellanecus Fund Raisers:
Highland Park 329 970 267 1,032
Topeka High 14,494 16,842 13,086 18,250
Topeka West 9,314 4,517 6,840 6,991
24,137 22,329 20,193 26,273
Performing Arts:
Highland Pack 896 9,518 7,649 2,765
Topeka High 16,402 129,644 [19,216 26,830
Topeka West 20,573 36,850 39,340 18,083
37,871 176,012 166,205 47,678
Scholarships and Memorials:
Highland Park 16,088 6,068 6,292 15,864
Topeka High 21,223 8,039 09,714 19,548
Topeka West 41,288 9,954 21,606 29,636
78,5909 24,061 37,612 65,048
Total Senior High Schools $ 281,703 $ 504,780 $ 491,841 3 294,642
Middle Schoals
Athletic Support Groups:
Landon $ 217 $ - § 217 $
Subtatals forward $ 217 $ - ) 217 3
(Continued)
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Schedule 8, (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2011 Additions Deductions 2012
Middle Schonls
Subtotals forward $ 217 $ - $ 217 $ -
Clubs and Organizations:
Chase - - - .
Eisenhower 182 1,334 1,425 9]
French 6,037 4,692 1817 6,912
Jardine 2,531 3,689 3,352 2,808
Landon 625 1,073 1,164 534
Robinson 3,920 850 1,779 2,991
13,295 11,638 11,537 13,396
Graduating Classes:
Bisenhower 346 50 300 96
French 422 - 422 -
Jardine 558 - - 558
Landon 863 168 768 263
2,189 218 1,490 917
Miscellaneous Fund Raisers:
Chase 4,399 2,640 1,503 5,530
Eisenhower 91 1,306 1,363 34
French - - - -
Jardine 9,032 - - 9,032
Landon 8,209 16,920 19,965 5,164
Robinson 71 400 82 389
21,802 21,266 22,913 20,155
Perfornting Arts:
Chase 488 412 572 328
Eisenhower 236 693 692 239
French 2,718 £,999 1,340 3,377
Jardine 1,854 1,568 1,156 2,266
Landon 582 217 469 330
Robinson 981 4,720 4,003 1,698
6,859 9,611 8,232 8,238
Total Middle Schools 3 44,362 S 42,733 $ 44,389 S 42,706
(Continued)
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Schedule 8, (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Balance Balance
Juene 30, June 30,
2011 Additions Deductions 2012
Elementary Schools
Clubs and Organizations:
Avondale West 3 - - 311
Bishop 418 433 453 398
Lowman Hill 1,202 187 1,307 82
Quinton Heights 4 - 4 -
Shaner 11 159 170 -
Whitson 609 - - 609
2,555 779 1,934 1,400
Miscellaneous Fuad Raisers:
Avondale East 1,185 309 1,535 41
Bishop 3,775 1,893 826 4,842
Highland Park Central 3,834 2,640 2,750 3,724
Linn 17 . 17 -
Lowman Hill 2,122 1,278 833 2,517
Lundgren 860 - 860 -
McCarter 12,371 1,341 666 13,046
McEachron 2,397 8,293 2,889 7,801
Meadows 345 308 - 653
Quincy 1477 564 910 1,131
Randolph 6,391 3,568 1,628 8,331
Ross 7,113 813 1,450 6,476
Scott 3,843 3,596 3,949 3,490
Shaner 381 460 - 841
State Street 421 2,360 245 2,536
Stout 348 718 484 582
Whitson 2,471 1,750 1,549 2,672
Williams 2,355 2,796 2,811 2,340
51,706 32,687 23,452 60,941
Graduating Class:
Avondale West 87 - - 87
McCarter 453 - - 453
Meadows 847 - 320 527
Ross 116 120 - 236
Scott 4,214 4,479 3,323 5,370
Shaner 83 171 108 146
Whitson 597 1,130 684 1,043
Williams - 2,791 1,852 839
6,397 8,691 6,387 8,701
Subtotals forward $ 60,658 $ 42,157 ) 31,773 $ 71,042
{Continued)
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Schedule 8, (Con't.)

TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN ASSETS AND LIABILITIES-
ALL AGENCY FUNDS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Balance Balance
June 30, June 30,
2011 Additions Deductions 2012
Subtotals forward $ 60,658 $ 42,157 $ 31,773 $ 71,042
Scholarships and Memorials:
Avondale East 641 177 818 -
Avondale West 86 - - 86
Lundgren 1,500 - 1,500 -
Quincy 154 1,331 1437 43
Ross 300 - - 300
State Strect - 2,103 - 2,103
Whitson - 630 - 630
2,681 4,241 3,755 3,167
Total Elementary Schools $ 63,339 3 46,398 3 35,528 $ 74,209
Other Locatigns
Clubs and Qrganizations:
Capital City 3 442 8 281 $ 504 $ 219
Parkdale Preschool 549 - 311 238
Topeka Education Center 1,448 730 640 1,538
2,439 1,011 1,455 1,995
Miscellaneous Fund Raisers:
Capital City 1,040 208 246 1,002
Parkdale Preschool 1,072 235 257 1,050
Sheldon Head Start 3,079 1,391 349 4,121
Topeka Education Center 1,362 723 1,165 920
6,553 2,557 2,017 7,093
Scholarships and Memorials:
Capital City 611 150 699 62
Sheldon Head Start 2,524 1,840 193 4,171
Topeka Education Center £,985 1,000 473 2,512
5,120 2,990 1,365 6,745
Totat Other Locations $ 14,112 S 6,558 S 4,837 S 15,833
Total - all schools:
Assels:
Cash $ 403,516 $ 600,469 5 576,593 3 427,390
Liabilities:
Duee to Student Organizations $ 403,516 $ 600,469 s 576,595 S 427,390
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501

TOPEKA, KANSAS
COMBINING BALANCE SHEET
GENERAL FUND
June 30, 2012
Supplemental Inservice Summer Pepsi
General General Education Schoo! Exclusivity
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ (2,158,317 § 1,564,262 $ 383,082 $ 118,791 $ $,982
State aid receivables 5,510,883 856,196 - - -
Due from other funds - - - - 89,900
Inventory of materials and supplies 142,359 - - - -
Total assets $ 3,494,925 $ 2420458 $ 383,082 $ 115791 $ 98,882
LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities $ 2,595,391 $ 60,181 $ 7,025 $ - $ -
Payroll Habilities - - - - -
Total liabilities 2,595,391 60,181 7,025 - -
Fund balances:
Nonspendable:

Tnventories 142,359 - B - -
Assigned 757,175 109,190 376,057 115,791 5,529
Unassigred - 2,251,087 - - 93,353

Total fund balances 899,534 2,360,277 375,057 115,791 93,882
Total Habilities and fund balances $ 3,494,925 $ 2420458 $ 383,082 $ 115791 $ 98,882
(Continued)
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Schedule 9

Fotal
Internal Sports Park Payroll Liability Self-insurance Risk Contingency General
Service Reserve Operations Clearing Reserve Management Reserve Fund

4,904 § 613,201 b} 4,952,864 $ 1,331,333 3 1,912,252 8 3,650,595 $ 12,378,949
- - - - 6,367,079
- - 89,900
- - 142,359

4,904 $ 613,201 $ 4,952,864 $ 1,331,333 $ 1,912,252 $ 3,650,595 $ 18,978,287

- § - $ - $ - 3 247,205 § - $ 2,909,802
4,904 - 4,952,864 . - y 4,957,768
4,904 - 4,952,864 . 247,205 . 7,867,570

. - - - . - 142,359

613,201 . 1,331,333 1,665,047 - 4,973,323
- - - - 3,650,595 5,995,035
. 613,201 : 1,331,333 1,665,047 3,650,595 11,110,717

4,904 $ 613,201 $ 4,952,864 $ 1,331,333 $ 1,912,252 3 3,650,593 § 18,978,287
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND
CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES

GENERAL FUND

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Supplemental Inservice Summer Pepsi
General General Education School Exclusivity
Revenues;
Property taxes 5 10,763,580 $ 16,695,545 S - $ - ) -
Local sourges - - - - 55,570
Charges for services - - - 19,809 44,783
State aid 36,474,385 368,817 - - -
Federal aid 39,554 - 75,934 92,743 -
Interest - 121 279 - 2,718
Misceflaneons 459,085 19,825 - - 5,107
Total revenues 67,736,604 17,084,308 76,213 112,552 168,178
Expenditures:
Tnstruction 29,616,015 1,996,289 - 126,064 12,560
Student support 4,358,335 70,562 5486 - -
Instructional support 2452456 142,112 270,155 - -
Genezal administration 1,284,706 536,323 - - 27,894
School administration 6,848,870 206,811 - 3,646 -
Business support 1,521,649 65,307 (212) 83 (4,996)
Plant and maintenance 7,881,609 1,882,681 - - -
Transportation 1,517,178 25,793 - - -
Ceniral support services 4,010,115 687,782 140 - -
Gther support - - - - -
Student activities - 160 - - -
Facililies acquisition and construction - - - - -
Debt service:
Principal - - - - 300,945
Interest - - - - 31,722
Total expenditures 59,490,933 5,613,820 275,562 134,793 368,125
Excess (deficiency) of revenues 8,245,671 11,470,488 (199,356) (22,241} (259,947)
over expendilures
Other financing sources {uses):
Insurance reimbursements - - - - -
Transfers In 3,032,807 - - - -
Transfers out (11,343,078) (10,193,k16) - - -
Net change in fund balances (64,600} 1,277,372 (199,356} (22,241) (259,947)
Fund balance, beginning of year 964,134 1,082,505 575,413 138,032 358,829
Fund balance, end of year $ 899,534 $ 2,360,277 $ 376,057 $ 115,79t $ 98,882
(Continued)
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Schedule 9, (Con't.)

Payroll Total
Spoits Park Liability Self-insurance Risk Contingency General
Operations Clearing Reserve Management Reserve Eliminations Fund

- $ - $ - - - $ - 27,459,128
32,256 - - - - - 87,826
247,483 - - - - - 312,075
- - - - - - 56,843,202

- - - - - - 208,231

359 - 810 1,233 - - 5,520
45,959 - - - - - 529,976
326,057 - 810 1,233 - - 85,445,955
- - - - - - 31,750,928

- - - 1,500 - - 4,435,883

- - - - - - 2,864,723

- - - £,120 - - 1,850,043
(4,914) - - - - - 7,059,413
348,705 - - 2,650 - - 1,933,186
37,543 - - - - - 9,801,833
as55 - - 3,356 - - 1,546,682

- - - 1,634 - - 4,699,671
148,319 - - - - - 148,319
- - - - - 160

- - - 939,744 - - 939,744

- - - - - - 300,945

- - - - - - 31,722
530,008 - - 950,004 - - 67,363,252
(203,951) - 810 (948,771) - - 18,082,703
- - - 1,545,496 - - 1,545,496

- - - - 45,139 (3,077,946) -

- - - (300,000) (3,032,807) 3,077,946 (21,791,055)
(203,951} - 810 296,725 (2,987,668) - (2,162,856)
817,152 - 1,330,523 1,368,322 6,638,263 - 13,273,573
613,201 $ - $ 1,331,333 1,665,047 3,650,595 $ - 11,110,717
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grant CFDA
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Agriculture:
Passed through State of Kansas Department of Education:
Child Nutritton Cluster:
School Breakfast Program 10.553 $ 1,274,796
National School Lunch Program 10.555 4,336,957
Summer Food Service Program for Children 10.559 143,320
Total Child Nutrition Cluster 5,755,073
Child and Adult Care Food Program 10.558 193,089
Federal Food Service 10.560 100
Team Nutrition 10.574 1,065
NSLP Equipment 10.579 6,695
Fresh Fruits and Vegetables 10.582 161,287
Total U.S. Department of Agriculture 6,122,309
U.S. Department of Labor:
Passed through Heartland Works:
Workforce Investment Act 17.259 81,664
Total U.S. Department of Labor 81,064
U.S. Departeent of Bducation:
Direct programs:
Indian Education Grants to Local Educational
Agencies - FY 12 B060A0SO807  84.060 91,083
Total direct funding 91,083
Passed through State of Kansas Department of Education:
Special Education Cluster:
Special Education Continuous Improvement - BY 11 84.027 38,337
Special Education Continuous Improvement - FY {2 84.027 116,195
Special Education - FY 12 84.027 3,323,546
Special Education Preschool Grant - FY 12 84.173 81,849
Total Special Education Cluster S 3,559,927

(Continued)
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS

UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501

TOPEKA, KANSAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
(Continued)
Year Ended June 30, 2012
Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grant CEFDA
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.3. Department of Ecucation:
Passed through State of Kansas Department of Education:
Subtotal § 3,559,927
Title I Clustei:
Title I - Carryover - FY 10 84.010 149,411
Title1-EBY 11 84.010 1,966,566
Tille1- FY 12 84.010 6,286,813
ARRA - Title I - Carryover - FY 10 84.389 286,631
Title I Part D - Carryover - FY 10 84.010 35,161
Title I Part D - Carryover - FY 11 84.010 88,821
Title I Part D - FY 12 84.010 160,303
Title 1 - SIG Tier I 84.010 218,945
Title I - SIG Tier I 84.010 342,419
Title 1 - Schoot Tmprovement - FY 10 84.010 (4,804)
Title I - School Improvement 1003(a) - FY 10 24,010 39,475
Total Title I Cluster 9,569,741
Education of Homeless Children and Youth Cluster:
Education for Homeless Children and Youth - FY 11 84.196 7,107
Education for Homeless Children and Youth - FY 12 84.196 56,099
Education for Homeless Children and Youth Scholarship 84.196 119
Total Education of Homeless Children and Youth Cluster 63,325
Educational Technology State Grants Cluster:
Education Technology State Grants - Carryover - FY 10 84.318 484
Enhancing Education Through Technology 84.318 36,192
ARRA - Education Technology State Grants - Carryover - FY 10 84.386 28,078
Total Educational Technology State Grants Cluster 64,754
Grants Not Clustered:
Title I Migrant 84.011 338,428
Vocational Education - Secondary Program Improvement - FY 12 84.048 113,196
Safe and Drug-Free Schools and Communities - FY 12 84.186 27,361
Character Education Initiative 84.215 550
Tech-Prep Education 84.243 94,279
2 Ist Century Community Learning Centers - FY 12 84.287 413,705
21st Century Community Learning Centers - FY 13 84.287 131,789
Advanced Placement - FY 10 84.330 2,855
Advanced Placement - FY 11 84.330 3,486
Advanced Placement - FY 12 84.330 24,369
Title 111 - English Language Acquisition - Carryover - FY 10 84.365 7
Title III - English Language Acquisition - Carryover - FY 1] 84.365 6,908
Title I - English Language Acquisition - FY 12 84.365 72,681

(Continued)
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
(Continued)

Year Ended June 30, 2012

Federal
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through Grant CFDA
Grantor/Program Title Number Number Expenditures
U.S. Department of Education:

Passed through State of Kansas Department of Education:

Subtotal $ 14,487,361
Tmproving Teacher Quality - Carryover - FY 10 84.367 71
Improving Teacher Quality - Carryover - FY 11 84.367 251,226
Improving Teacher Quality - Carryover - FY 12 §4.367 711,265
ARRA - School Improvement Grants - FY 10 84.388 678,504
ARRA - School Improvement Grants - FY 11 84.388 1,788,521
Education Jobs Fund 84410 39554

Total passed through State of Kansas
Department of Education 17,956,502
Passed through Kansas Board of Regents:
Adult Basic Education Program 84.002 103,760
Total U.S. Department of Education 18,151,345
U.8. Department of Health and Human Services:
Direct program:
Head Start Cluster:
Head Start - FY 11 07CH7038/10  93.600 495,049
Head Start - FY 12 07CH7038/11  93.600 1,589,798
Total Head Start Cluster 2,084,847

Passed through Kansas State Department of Education:

Youth Risk Behavior Survey 93.938 1,670
Total U.S. Department of Health and Human Services 2,086,517
Total federal expenditures S 26,441,835

See accompanying notes to schedule of
expenditures of federal awards.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
June 30, 2012
1 - General
The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the activity of all federal
awards of the Topeka Public Schools, Unified School District No. 501 (the District). All federal

awards received directly from federal agencies, as well as federal awards passed through other
governmental agencies, are included on the schedule.

2 - Basis of Accounting

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented using the modified
accrual basis of accounting which is described in Note 1, Measurement Focus, Basis of
Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation, to the District’s financial statements.
Encumbrances are not included as expenditures in accordance with this basis of accounting.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHQOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Part I - Summary of Auditor's Results

Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued: Unqualified

Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weakness identified None

Significant deficiencies identified that are not

considered to be material weaknesses Finding 2011-1
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted: None
Federal Awards

Internal control over major programs:
Material weaknesses identified None

Significant deficiencies identified that are not considered

to be material weaknesses None reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance for major programs: Unqualified for all major
programs

Audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported
in accordance with section 510(a) of Circular A-133 Finding 2012-1

Identification of the District's major programs:

CEDA Number Name of Federal Programs
84.388 (ARRA) ARRA — School Improvement Grants
10.553, 10.555, 10.559 Child Nutrition Cluster
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and
Type B programs $ 793,255

Auditee qualified as a low risk auditee? Yes

Part II - Financial Statement Findings

Finding 2011-1 — Significant Deficiency

Condition — The District is not currently recording some of its capital asset additions and disposals until they are
identified during the audit.

Condition — The financial statements are the responsibility of management. As such, the District’s internal control
over capital assets should identify all fixed asset additions and disposals on a consistent basis so that they may be
properly recorded in the financial statements.

Cause — Inappropriate application of generally accepted accouniing principles.
Effect — There is the potential that the financial statements may be misstated.

Recommendation — We realize that the District contracted with a third party to perform a physical inventory of the
technology assets of the District during fiscal year ended June 30, 2012. We recommend that the Disfrict use the
results of the physical inventory as the starting point for updating the asset records of the District on an on-going
basis for all additions and disposals, including additions to construction in progress, at the time of acquisition or
construction, In addition, disposals of land and buildings should be recorded as they occur.

Management’s Response/Corrective Action Plan (Unaudited) — The missing assets mentioned in the concern are
composed of technology equipment. To assist in solving the problem, last summer the District engaged the
services of an outside inventory company to visit every location and inventory all technology equipment in the
District. Their inventory was compared to the District’s computerized inventory records. Items not found during
the inventory were listed by building and sent to the responsible person at each site—usually the Principal. Some
missing items were simply not properly checked out by the District’s staff members and other pieces of
equipment were located in the building by the building staff (possibly stored in a locked container during the
inventory). Over $8,000,000 of equipment still remains unaccounted for, Although an unacceptable portion of the
missing items is or may be due to employee or student theft, the majority appears to simply come from the
Information Technology staff not competing the required transfer or disposal paperwork to properly remove items
from the inventory. This is reflected in the fact that most items on the missing list are older than the age calling
for replacement under the District’s technology equipment replacement policy. Of the $8,000,000 unaccounted for
equipment over $7,000,000 of that amount is depreciated off the District's books.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

Finding 2011-1 — Significant Deficiency (Continued)

There are current District policy and regulations in place directing the proper handling of the movement and
disposal of equipment. These policies and regulations will be emphasized to the staff members who should
routinely be involved with equipment disposal. To ensure improved performance the General Director of
Information Technology and the General Director of Fiscal Services will quarterly review technology equipment
reporting. These actions should mitigate this issue going forward,

The Business Office will be asking the Board of Education for authority to write-off the missing items.

Part I1I - Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards

Finding 2012-1

Federal Program — Child Nutrition Cluster (CFDA Nos. 10.553, 10.555, 10.559), United States Department of
Agriculture, Passed through the Kansas Department of Education, Grant Award Year Ended June 30, 2012

Condition -- During the fiscal year ending June 30, 2012, the internal auditor for the District performed 2
compliance audit for varying dates during fiscal year 2012, comparing the attendance records to the meals
charged for that day. Of the total food service transactions in the population (1,904,042), the internal auditor
limited the testing to the days when students were absent for an entire day (65,472). In this sample, the internal
auditor found that there were 8,009 exceptions where a student was absent from school, but the school charged
the student’s account for a free, reduced or paid lunch.

Criteria — Meals charged to student accounts should match the actual meals served to students.

Cause - Potential causes could include circumvention of controls, incorrectly kept attendance records, or incorrect
student meal counts recorded in the food service system.

Effect — Since the District incorrectly charged meals to absent students, the District incorrectly requested
reimbursement for such meals.

Questioned Costs — The internal auditor for the District noted the following exceptions for all meal types: 6,796
free, 209 temporary-free, 424 reduced, 16 temporary-reduced, and 564 full paid. The internal auditor has not
quantified questioned costs.

Recommendation — We understand that upon the discovery of this issue, the District was proactive in addressing
and correcting this deficiency.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

Finding 2012-1 (Continued)

Managenent’s Response/Corrective Action Plan (Unaudited) — U.S.D. 501 originally discovered this issue during
an internal review and has instituted corrective action in the following areas:

1. Segregation of duties

a. Job responsibilities for all locations are being reviewed to ensure a segregation of duties (separate
employees recording student lunches and charges to student meal accounts).

b. A procedural plan is being developed to train a “sub” to record absences and/or lunches in the
appropriate locations where the same employee is recording student absences and charges to
student meal accounts.

¢. A procedural plan is being developed when employees are absent from the process for an
extended period of time.

2, Recording of student attendance
a. Training will be conducted with appropriate personnel responsible for entering attendance data.
b. A follow up review on the accuracy of attendance records will be conducted at the end of the first
quarter. If necessary, follow up training will be conducted with individual employees.

3. Recording of charges to student meal accounts
a. Investigate the cost/feasibility of Internal Audit’s recommendations which include:
i. Develop a computer program where TERMS (student attendance) and OneSource
(student meal charges) are linked together to share data - i.e., picture of student,
attendance record, etc. This would allow an employee to verify the actual student
(picture) with their attendance record for the day before charging the meal to an account.
ii. Issue badges for all students. This would allow students to scan their badges when paying
for their meal(s):
1. High Schools & Middle Schools - use Topeka West as a model for checking in
students when they receive a breakfast/lunch
2. Elementary Schools - teachers would be responsible for distributing the badges to
the students when going to breakfast/lunch and retrieving the badges after
breakfast/lunch
b. Work with management to develop controls to ensure student meal accounts are not charged
when the student is absent from school during breakfast/lunch time,
c. In addition, review findings with all food service employees to ensure they are aware of the issues
and take necessary steps to correct.

We believe by addressing these issues, it will foster an environment which increases awareness of risk
management, compliance awareness and strategies to utilize the Topeka Public Schools’ assets and
resources in the best manner possible.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOLS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS
SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
Year Ended June 30, 2012

Finding 2011-1 — Significant Deficiency

Condition - The District is not currently recording some of its capital asset additions and disposals until they are
identified during the audit,

Criteria — The financial statements are the responsibility of management. As such, the District’s internal control
over capital assets should identify all fixed asset additions and disposals on a consistent basis so that they may be
properly recorded in the financial statements.

Cause — Inappropriate application of generally accepted accounting principles.
Effect — There is the potential that the financial statements may be misstated.

Recommendation — We recommend that the District implement procedures to record all capital asset additions,
including additions to construction in progress, at the time of acquisition or construction. In addition, disposals of
land and buildings should be recorded as they occur.

Management’s Response/Corrective Action Plan (Unaudited) — This Audit Finding arose from the construction of
the warm up pool and crash area at the Capitol Federal Natatorium. The Capitol Federal Foundation was given a
lease of that facility (the natatorium) to allow the Foundation to totally control the construction, outside of the
legal requirements placed on school districts in Kansas. At the District’s Fiscal Year end, the project was only
partially completed and the District’s business office did not contact the Foundation for completion data and book
those numbers. At the completion of the construction project, during FY-2011, the lease was terminated,
ownership of the improvements transferred to the District and the completed project cost/value was booked at that
time. Since 100% of the project’s over site and accounting was performed by the Capitol Federal Foundation, the
District’s Business Office failed to see the requircment to book the improvements technically still owned by the
Capital Federal Foundation. Also, please keep in mind that the handling of the construction project was way out
of the normal field of operation for a school district and was under taken to meet the zone swim meet deadlines,
leadership demands, and most importantly the desires of a the donor of the funds for this wonderful $3,600,000 -+
project. We will monitor capital asset activity more closely in the future.

Follow —up — This finding is repeated in 2012.
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TOPEKA PUBLIC SCHOOILS
UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT NO. 501
TOPEKA, KANSAS

SCHEDULE OF PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
(Continued)

Finding 2010-1 — Significant Deficiency

Federal Program — Child Nuirition Cluster (CFDA No, 10,553, 10.555, 10.559), United States Department of
Agriculture, Passed through the Kansas State Department of Education, Grant award for year ended June 30, 2011

Condition — For one of three vendors selected for testing the District did not verify that the vendor was not on the
Excluded Parties List System.

Criteria — According to 2 CFR 180, procurement transactions expected to equal or exceed $ 25,000 require that
the recipient of the federal funding verify that the entity in the next lower tier that it is contracting with is not
suspended or debarred.

Cause — The District did not follow its internal policy by verifying that all vendors whose contracts were expected
to meet or exceed $ 25,000 were not suspended or debarred.

Effect — The District could enter into a contract or vendor relationship with a suspended or debarred party.

Questioned Costs — Unknown

Recommendation — The District should verify all vendors awarded bids are not on the Excluded Parties List
Systen and retain the documentation of this process or should include language in its bid contracts to make the
vendor certify that it is not a suspended or debarred party.

Management's Response/Corrective Action Plan (Unaudited) — The District (Purchasing Services) has a practice
of reviewing the online list of Excluded Parties List System (EPLS) to validate that our selected vendors have not
been suspended or debarred from doing business with government agencies; a screen shot of our search is printed
and filed. We insert language in food related bid documents that requires vendors to self report if they are
currently or have been on the EPLS.

The vendor from the sampled list that did not have file verification of EPLS is Earthgrains Sara Lee Bakery.
Online review of this specific vendor (as well as other food vendors with annual spend of over $25,000) shows
Sara Lee is not, nor has been on the EPLS.

It is the Purchasing Department’s intent to follow our internal practice of reviewing food vendors more diligently,
and making sure paper evidence of our search is filed. As a backup to the paper filing system in place we will
implement storing documentation of the EPLS search(s) electronically as well.

Follow —up — This finding is resolved.
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BERBERICH TRAHAN ¢ COPA.

Certified Public Actountonis

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL
REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN
AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Education
Topeka Public Schools
Unified School District No. 501;

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of Topeka Public Schools, Unified School District No. 501
(the District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2012, and have issued our report thereon dated December 21,
2012. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by
the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control over
financial reporting. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over
financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on
the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the
District’s internal control over financial reporting.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal
control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the District’s financial statements

will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first
paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over financial
reporting that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control over financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined
above. However, we identified a certain deficiency in internal control over financial reporting, described in the
accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs as Finding 2011-1, that we consider to be a significant
deficiency in internal control over financial reporting. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of
deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe that a material weakness, yet important enough to merit
atiention by those charged with governance.
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MCGLADREY ALLIANCE 5 McGladrey

McGladrey Alllance Is a premier affiliation of independent accounting and consulling firms, McGladeey Alllance member firms matntain thelr name, avtenomy and independence
and are responsible for thelr awn client fee arrangements, delivery of services and maintenance of ¢leat relationshigs.



Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the District's financial statements are free of material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tesis disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing

Standards.

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of the District in a separate letter dated December 21,
2012,

The District's response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. We did not audit the District's response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on the
response.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education, management, others within
the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by

anyone other than these specified patties.

Bubericd ratan & (o, PA.

December 21, 2012

96-



V4 0343 NYHVEL HIIH3ay3d

0502-T1999 5) “eiadoy “py swebuimg mS 0€9E

BOLTEEZSQL f 9755 0857008 u4fSyor [ZbEHET SRl 7

wWey 2a1epueLy

BERBERICH TRANAN & CO,RA.

Certified Public Accountonts

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS
THAT COULD HAVE A DIRECT AND MATERIAL EFFECT ON EACH MAJOR
PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

Board of Education
Topeka Public Schools
Unified School District No, 501;

Compliance
We have audited Topeka Public Schools, Unified School District No. 501’s (the District) compliance

with the types of compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that could have a direct and material effect on each of the District's major federal programs
for the year ended June 30, 2012. The District’s major federal programs are identified in the summary
of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs. Compliance
with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to each of its major federal
programs is the responsibility of the District's management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on the District's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
District’s compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination of the District’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respects, with the compliance requirements referred
to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal programs for the year
ended June 30, 2012. However, the results of owr auditing procedures disclosed an instance of
noncompliance with those requirements, which is required to be reported in accordance with OMB
Circular A-133 and which is described in the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs

as Finding 2012-1.

Anlndependsrtly Owned Mavbar

MCGLADREY ALLIANCE g McGladrey

MeGladrey Alllance is a premier affifiation of independent accounting and consulting flrms. McGladrey Alllance member firms malntain thelr name, autonomy and independence
and are responsible for thelr cwn client fee asrangements, delivery of services and malntenance of client relstionships.



Internal Control Qver Compliance

Management of the District is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective internal control
over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts and grants applicable to federal
programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the District's internal control over
compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance
and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but
not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control over compliance.
Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District’s internal control over
compliance.

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a
deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a
reasonable possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis.

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first
parvagraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be deficiencies, significant deficiencies or material weaknesses, We did not
identify any deficiencies in internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses,

as defined above.

The District’s response to the finding identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs. We did not audit the District’s response and, accordingly, we express
no opinion on the response.

This report in intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Education, management,
others within the entity, federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be
and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Drberih Tpaban € Co, P A

December 21, 2012
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Retirees (S812) - 01/03M13

Out of State Retirees

o Federal Wages | State Wages
Gross $ 167,612.65 | § 167,612.65
reductions $ - | $ -
EXCESS LIFE $ - s - |
Total $ 16761265 |$ 167,612.65
System/Correct Taxable Wages $ 167,612.65 $ 163,149.13

$ 4,463.62

$ 167,612.65

Out of Balance "

=




Retirees (§12) - 01/03/13

OutofBalance = = i

] | Federal Wages | State Wages
Gross $ 167,612.85 | $§ 167,612.65
reductions $ - 1% -
EXCESS LIFE $ - $ -
| Total $ 16761265 | $ 167,612.65
System/Correct Taxable Wages $ 16761265 $ 163,149.13:
Out of State Retirees $ 4,463.52
) $ 167,61265




Retirees (812) - 01/03/13

Federal Wages | State Wages
Gross $ 16761265 $ 167,612.65|
reductions $ - 3 -
EXCESS LIFE $ - |8 -
Total $ 167,61265 | $ 167,612.65
System/Correct Taxable Wages $  167,612.65 $ - 163,149.13
$

Out of State Retirees

$ 16761265

Outof Balance = 0
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